
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

 MARCH 27, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, March 27, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, 
WI, in the Council Chambers.           
          

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Kip Kinzel 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members  
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick 
Verhaalen, Mitch Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike 
O’Keefe 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - March 13, 2017 Meeting 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
* A. Discussion and possible action on proposed Ordinance No. 2017-04 creating 

Sec. 7-1-26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances pertaining to the keeping of 
domesticated chickens; and action thereon   

 
* B. Discussion and possible action on proposed Ordinance No. 2017-07 amending 

Sec. 7-1-25(a) of the Code of Ordinance relating to penalties; and action thereon 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider application from The Shinery LLC, Elizabeth Reissmann, Agent, for a 

“Class A” liquor license for The Shinery, W63 N706 Washington Avenue for the 
period ending June 30, 2017; and action thereon 

 
* B. Consider request for authorization to hire a Police Officer due to a retirement and 

consider request to promote an officer to Detective Sergeant; and action thereon 
 

1 of 189



* C. Consider bids received for the 2017 Street and Utility Contract; and action 
thereon (Public Works and Sewerage Commission 3/9/17) 

 
* D. Consider final plat approval and approval of a Development Agreement for the 

Sandhill Trails Subdivision; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 03/06/17) 
 
* E. Consider Resolution No. 2017-05 authorizing staff to apply for a DNR Runoff 

Management Grant; and action thereon 
 
* F. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-10 amending Sec. 10-1-34 of the Code of 

Ordinances to eliminate the existing loading zone on the west side of Washington 
Avenue located mid-block between Mill Street and Western Avenue; and action 
thereon (Public Works and Sewerage, 03/09/17) 

 
* G. Consider agreement with Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. for general engineering 

services related to the possible construction of a monopole; and action thereon 
 
* H. Consider amendment to renew parking lot lease with US Bank; and action 

thereon 
  

 I. Consider Mayor Kinzel’s temporary appointment to the Personnel Committee; 
and action thereon 

 
* J. Consider payment of bills for the period 03/10/17 through 03/17/17, transfers for 

the period 03/08/17 through 03/22/17, and payroll for the period 02/26/17 through 
03/11/17; and action thereon 

 
*** K. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
   
 1. Consider approval of new Operators License applications for the period 

ending June 30, 2017 for Kelly L. Dockery, Dustin J. Halyburton, Aaron J. 
Hickey, and Troy D. Reissmann; and action thereon  

 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operators License applications for the 

period ending June 30, 2017 for Annette L. Chiddister-Woods; and action 
thereon 

 
3. Authorize granting of Temporary Class “B” Beer Licenses to Cedarburg 

Fireman’s Park, Inc. for Maxwell Street Days, Firemen’s Park, W65 N796 
Washington Avenue, for May 28, July 16, September 3, and October 1, 
2017 from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 
 4. Authorize granting of Temporary Class “B” Beer License to Cedarburg 

Fireman’s Park, Inc. for the Ozaukee County Fair, Firemen’s Park, W65 
N796 Washington Avenue, for August 2, 2017 thorough August 6, 2017, 
8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

2 of 189



10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
  1. 2016 Annual Financial Report 
 
11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to State 
Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the investing of public funds or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 
require a closed session, more specifically, to receive an update regarding the Amcast 
site and to discuss negotiations regarding the possible construction of a new monopole  
tower on City-owned property located on Western Avenue adjacent to the water tower, 
and State Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the Council who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, more specifically, to discuss the 
Prochnow Landfill.  Approval of closed session minutes of 01/09/17. 

 
13. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 

 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
03/23/17 ckm    

3 of 189

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 
  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170313-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                  March 13, 2017 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, March 13, 2017, at the Community Center Gym, W63 N641 Washington Avenue.  Mayor 
Kinzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 
Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe 

                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Assistant City Attorney Tim Schoonenberg, City Clerk 
Constance McHugh, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, City Planner 
Jon Censky, Police Chief Tom Frank,   interested citizens and news 
media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor Kinzel’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to approve the 
minutes from the February 27, 2017 meeting.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-04 AMENDING THE CITY OF 
CEDARBURG COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN – 2025 FOR THE PROPERTIES 
LOCATED AT N44 W6035 AND N43 W6005 HAMILTON ROAD AND THE PARKING 
LOT ACROSS THE STREET ALONG WITH THE VACANT PARCEL LOCATED 
BETWEEN THE PARKING LOT AND SPRING STREET FROM THE HIGH MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (5.2 TO 10.8 UNITS/ACRE) USE CLASSIFICATION AS 
REFERENCED IN THE TEXT OF THE PLAN AND THE HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
(10.9 TO 16.1 UNITS/ACRE) USE CLASSIFICATION AS SHOWN ON THE MAP, TO THE 
HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (18.24 UNITS/ACRE) USE CLASSIFICATION AND 
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (12,000 SQUARE FEET) FOR THE 17,000 SQUARE 
FOOT AREA ON SPRING STREET; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor Kinzel outlined the public hearing process and verified with Deputy Clerk Kletzien that this 
public hearing was properly noticed. 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to open the 
Public Hearing to consider Resolution No. 2017-04 at 7:03 p.m.  
 

4 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-2 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Planner Censky explained that as part of any rezoning or other land use change, State Law requires 
that the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the zoning be consistent with each other before such 
action can take place.  This request is before the Common Council for two reasons:  first, as a result 
of the comments received at the November 14, 2016 Common Council public hearing the applicant 
has made certain changes to the plans which are significant enough to require Council’s review and 
recommendation and secondly, during the review process it was discovered that there is a conflict 
between the Comprehensive Land Use Plan map and the Land Use Plan text which needs to be 
addressed by amending both the map and the text to now reflect the overall project density of 18.2 
units/acre.  At the March 6, 2017 Plan Commission meeting, the members recommended the Land 
Use amendment as proposed by a vote of 4 – 2 and one abstention. 
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s question, Planner Censky confirmed that the Plan 
Commission approved a plan in October that was comprised of a different density. 
 
Tony DeRosa of HSI provided a context of what has happened since November 2016.  He met with 
Aaron Schultz, Attorney Alan Marcuvitz representing the neighborhood surrounding the St. Francis 
Borgia property, Mayor Kinzel, Planner Censky, City Attorney Herbrand, and City 
Administrator/Treasurer Mertes.  At that point in time he was told that the neighborhood was okay 
with the three story plan; however, they had concerns regarding the density.  Tony DeRosa asked 
for feedback from this meeting and he never received any formal proposed changes. 
 
Tony DeRosa presented the significant changes that have been made to the project, as a result of the 
feedback from the community. 

• Original plan:  98 luxury apartment homes 
• Final Plan:  69 luxury apartment homes (a 30% reduction) 
• Project density:  reduced to approximately 18 units/acre (including the single family lot) 
• Building “C” has been significantly reduced in size from a 3 story building and has been 

replaced with a 2 story, townhome style building with 9 townhomes 
o Each townhome will have a 2 car attached garage and private entrance 

• Building “B” has been reduced in length by 40 feet creating a 70’ green space buffer off of 
Hilgen Avenue 

• Buildings “A” and “B” still have heated underground parking for all residents 
• Building setbacks have been significantly increased 
• Additional green space and landscaping has been added 

o Green space is 1.2 acres or 33% of the total site 
o Open space is 2.9 acres or 77% of the total site 

 
Eric Harmon from AEG Architects presented aerial views, renderings and elevations for the three 
buildings: 
 
Building “B” Design Comparison 

• Reduced the length of building footprint by 40’ 
• Reduced overall building height due to natural site grading 
• Increased building setback off of Hilgen Avenue by 40’ 
• Increased greenspace of corner of Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road 
• Hilgen Avenue front yard setback increased from 34’ to 70’ 
• Hilgen side yard setback increased from 71’ to 83’ 
• Reduced number of units from 33 to 28 

5 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-3 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• Dropped building corner from 3 stories to 2 stories 
• Eliminated gable form to reduce overall height of building by 6’ 

 
Building “C” Design Comparison 

• Number of units reduced from 28 to 9 with conversion from corridor building to private 
entry townhomes 

• Reduced height of building from 3 stories to 2 stories 
• Adjusted building layout to work with existing grade further reducing building height on 

southern end 
• Design aesthetic and rhythm to compliment typical Cedarburg residential road 
• Setbacks – side yard – 37 feet, 9 inches 

     - rear yard – 36 feet, 10 inches 
 

Building “A” exhibits showed: 
• Existing conditions vs. Building “A” rendering 
• Elevation and grading of building in relation to the church rendering 
• Perception of building in relation to the church vs. actual rendering 
 

James Grover asked for a point of order to ask why two speakers for the development have 
presented for a half an hour and the public will be limited to two minutes.  Mayor Kinzel explained 
that the petitioner is allowed to make his presentation and assured him that everyone will be heard. 
 
Tony DeRosa presented A New Way of Living: 

• There is nothing like Arrabelle in the City of Cedarburg 
o A type of luxury housing for the people of this community 

• High market demand 
o Appealing to baby boomers, empty nesters and snow birds in particular 

• Hassle free way of living is growing in appeal 
o People that are choosing to rent 

• High-end finishes 
o Quartz countertops, high-end stainless steel appliances, custom cabinetry, walk-in 

closets, large balconies & heated underground parking 
• Luxury building amenities 

o Fully furnished clubroom, fitness center, pet-friendly, professional management, on-
site storage, complimentary coffee bar, 24 hour controlled access, & car care station 

• High-end services provided 
o Valet dry-cleaning, watering plants if out of town & resident social events 

throughout the year 
 

Tony DeRosa explained why Arrabelle is good for the Community: 
• Vacancy rate of approximately 2% = pent up demand 
• Cedarburg lacks this type of modern, high-end housing 
• People in the community are looking for something like Arrabelle 
• Comprehensive Plan calls out for the City to do the following as it relates to housing in the 

community: 
o Provide adequate housing supply that meets existing and forecasted housing demand 

in the community 

6 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-4 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

o Promote adequate supply of renter housing to serve current & future residents 
o Direct future residential development to areas that can be served conveniently and 

economically with public utilities and community facilities and services 
o Encourage the use of redevelopment sites where streets, sewer, & water systems are 

already in place 
• Site identified as Smart Growth Area:  targeted for high medium density residential of 16.1 

units/acre (roughly 60 units) 
• City does not currently collect tax revenue on property 
• The school is at the end of it useful life 

o Status quo is not desired for this property 
 

Tony DeRosa explained that the current zoning is Institutional which allows for the following uses:  
schools, day cares, clinics, offices, funeral homes, hospitals, sanatoriums and other institutional type 
of uses (none that are desired). 
 
Kevin Barry of the Barry Company explained that they were hired two years ago to market the St. 
Francis Borgia property.  After meeting with the City and St. Francis Borgia members, Barry 
Company determined that the best use of the property would be residential multi-family housing.  
They contacted 100 developers and received feedback from ten interested developers, all of which 
exceeded the City’s current density parameters.  They ultimately received three proposals and HSI 
was chosen because it had the least density and was the most feasible development.  He explained 
that HSI reduced the size of the development and St. Francis Borgia reduced their price, to get to 
this point.    
 
Tony DeRosa explained the economic benefits as follows: 

• Arrabelle will generate an estimated $340,000 of impact fee revenue 
• Arrabelle will add over $8.5M+ of tax base 
• Downtown vibrancy 

o 105 people spending $3k/year within walking distance of Arrabelle 
o $300k/year x 10 years = $3M economic impact over 10 years 
o Shopping patterns now vs. the next generation and how they shop (online) 
o Local business owners should be embracing this additional business that they stand 

to benefit from 
 
Tony DeRosa stated the City has a chance to do something good with this property, unlike the 
Cedarburg Lumber Company property that remains unchanged.  The decision should not be about 
emotion but what is best for the community.  He told stories of people who were interested in this 
type of housing and had to leave the City because it was not available.  He stated that the proposed 
development does fit the Master Plan and the PUD is a tool that gives the City added control.  Tony 
DeRosa stated that if the Council votes against this project it will send a message to other 
developers that the City is not open for business or growth.  He explained that HSI has made 
concessions to the project and it is better than what was proposed 9 months ago and they will 
continue to work with the City through the final stages of the project. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s questions, Planner Censky explained that a legal 
document will need to be drafted regarding a cross easement and he is satisfied that there will be 
enough parking for the church. 
 

7 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-5 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s question, Planner Censky stated that the next steps are as 
follows: 

• The developer will be required to have a detailed traffic study conducted to be reviewed by 
the Plan Commission and Common Council. 

• If the traffic study demonstrates the project will not have a significant adverse impact on 
traffic patterns, the developer will then be required to generate fully detailed site, 
architectural, landscaping, erosion control and stormwater management plans.  In addition, 
the City will work with the developer to draft a development agreement.   

• Upon submittal of those plans and the development agreement, the Plan Commission and 
then the Common Council will review and approve the plans. 

• Upon receiving approval of all details and associated plans, the applicant generates 
construction plans and submits them for review and approval by the State of Wisconsin. 

• The applicant submits the State approved plans to the Building Inspector for his review and 
building permit issuance. 
 

In answer to Council Member Regenfuss’ question, Planner Censky stated that the Engineering 
Department will be involved with the traffic study and it will include the surrounding area. 
 
Council Member Arnett expressed concern for the church sign that obscure’s the drivers view when 
turning right on Washington Avenue from Hamilton Road.  Planner Censky stated that the City will 
talk to the church in regard to relocating this sign. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Planner Censky explained that the traffic study is 
typically not done until after the initial approval because the study is very costly.  In this case it is a 
condition before further approval.   
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Planner Censky confirmed that the church and 
parking lot are exempt from taxes and beginning this year taxes will be collected on the school 
property and the vacant land. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Tony DeRosa explained that it is not feasible in 
this economic environment to offer the townhomes as owner occupied condominiums.  Currently 
rental units are the preferred option. 
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s questions, Tony DeRosa stated that HSI started 10 years 
ago and they have built five projects (500 units) to date.  The vacancy rate for their projects are 
approximately 3%; whereas, the market is closer to 5 or 6%.  Their buildings outperform the market 
because people want to stay in their buildings. 
 
Council Member O'Keefe stated that he has heard concerns with the buildings being sold or 
becoming low rent or low income housing years later.  Tony DeRosa stated that they do not cut 
corners on their projects.  They use a long-term approach, as if they will own the building forever.    
If the property is sold in the future it will attract high end investors, as they will be a premium to 
own. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Planner Censky stated that PUD zoning allows the 
Common Council and Plan Commission to act specific to this project and gives the City control 
over the project.  Approving this PUD is not precedent setting. 

8 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-6 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
City Clerk McHugh explained the procedure for public comments using the speaker cards stating 
that she would call three people at a time to line up at the podium for comments. 
 
Daniel Carr, W59 N397 Hilbert Avenue, stated that the neighborhood has never agreed to 
apartments on the St. Francis Borgia site.  He stated that he has addressed the Council before on this 
subject and has also expressed himself twice in the News Graphic against this project.  The City is 
now ready to accept or reject this project.  Before voting, he asked the Council to think carefully 
about the following: 

• Do you want change in the historical status in Cedarburg? 
• Is this project harmonious to the neighborhood in the City itself? 
• Do we need to change our City because an entity has overspent for a new building? 
• Is this going to affect the future growth of the neighborhood?  For instance, Amcast that 

is on the horizon.  Is that going to affect Hamilton Road? 
• When looking at the single-family lot, does that increase the density even further? 
• What else could be put on the school site that would be more conducive to the City? 

 
Mr. Carr stated this issue has brought forth more creative ideas for the project and there are 
developers waiting in the wings with ideas that would generate funds and add to the historical 
theme.  He stated that the Council’s legacy is being engraved this evening and he asked if they want 
to change the City that was created by past leaders or do they want to further enhance it with a more 
conducive and creative project that will attract even more people to come to Cedarburg.  After 
tonight, there is no turning back. 
 
Gil-Marie Janssen, W59 N397 Hilbert Avenue, asked the Common Council to look to the future and 
make the best decision.  The current plan is a monolithic beast and is oversized for that lot.  She 
stated that the Arrabelle development breaks the City Code and has created upheaval and mayhem 
in their neighborhood, on the streets, and in the community.  She compared this situation to a Dr. 
Seuss book about environmental awareness entitled The Lorax, which is a story of someone who 
saw an economic opportunity in a community.  The tale turns dark when the main character and 
greed starts to destroy the town, leaving the area a barren waste land.  The Lorax issues a warning 
about the dangers of land exploitation and greed.  The Lorax teaches lessons about what we as 
individuals can do to save our communities.  Upon reflection, HSI and St. Francis Borgia follows 
the storyline of The Lorax.  She urged the Common Council to vote no. 
 
Chris Capelle, N69 W7123 Bridge Road, stated that the HSI development is too big, too tall, the 
style is not becoming to historic Cedarburg, is too close to Washington Avenue, and the parking 
area will be blasted with lights all night long, with no regard for the existing property owners.  Most 
empty nesters own their homes.  She can live in her home for less than $2,000/mo. including the 
utilities and hire a high school student to do the outside work.  She referenced a cartoon in the News 
Graphic showing that a funeral home could be built on the St. Francis Borgia property.  She would 
welcome that business because it would be quiet, not busy, and not be three stories tall.  She 
questioned the things people will leave on the curb when they move out of an apartment.  Ms. 
Capelle expressed concern for the extra need for policing and parking during festivals because 
festival goers would love this parking.  She questioned what people will get for their $2,000 rent 
(lawn care and dry cleaning, which is available across from Piggy Wiggly).    Renters will not have 
only one car and they will not walk to Piggly Wiggly because it is too far.  She said that Mayor 
Kinzel has made the following remarks in the past:  he grew up here, married here, and had his 

9 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-7 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
children here.  Cedarburg is a fun place to be, has a small town atmosphere, beautiful buildings, and 
a beautiful downtown.  Her mission is preserving what we love about Cedarburg.      
 
Steve Brill, W69 N419 Fox Pointe Avenue, explained that the eventual sale of the St. Francis 
Borgia property was known years ago and that St. Francis Borgia and the City should have reached 
out to sell and purchase the land that would have resulted in an equitable deal for both parties.  This 
would have avoided the present community division.  Buying private owned land by local 
governments has recently occurred in Thiensville, Grafton, Mequon, Glendale and the North Shore.  
It is the correct way for a community to develop a cohesive plan for a targeted property such as this.  
After input from adjacent property owners, citizens, City staff and professionals, they could develop 
a cohesive plan and set it in place.  Developers are then asked to review the guidelines and solicit 
proposals.  Many projects are built using this process.  He stated that he wanted to build an addition 
to his home to accommodate his aging mother-in-law.  He presented his plans to the City that were 
not within the City’s setback, height and floor area ratio rules.  He was sure he would be told to go 
back to the drawing board, as getting the variance from all commissions and boards is highly 
unlikely.  He asked how this project, despite all of the non-conforming specifications or requests 
has gotten this far.  This appears about pleasing the owners of the property and supersedes what is 
correct for the community.  As owners of the property, they have a right to do with it as they please, 
providing it is legal and within the established ordinances and codes; which they are not meeting.  
He is here because the proposal does not come close to the existing guidelines.  They are asking for 
Code changes and or variances to Floor Area Ratio rules, height, setback, historic district and many 
more.    He also expressed concern for not setting aside part of the project for classifications of 
targeted affordable housing.  He would like the area to be made better for all.  Neighbors are at odds 
with each other when exchanging opposing views of the project and he views this as a doorstep to 
the downtown district.  The correct step is for the City to pay the owners a fair market price for the 
property and develop a cohesive plan for the property.  He asked the Council to please vote no to 
the three requests tonight.  As a Christian he asked that St. Francis revisit their mission statement on 
their website.  He asked to take another direction and donate the property to Habitat for Humanity 
who will build single family homes and find deserving owners. 
 
Vera Brissman, W58 N432 Hilbert Avenue, asked Tony DeRosa to stop insulting the citizens of 
Cedarburg by saying that the Friends of Historic Cedarburg have many opinions.  They have one 
specific opinion that is to vote no on this project.  She stated that snowbirds living in the new 
development would not be shopping in the City for half of the year.  She did not agree with his 
statement that Cedarburg is a stagnant City because like most suburbs in the area and many places 
around the country, Cedarburg is a very dynamic city.  People are very involved and interested in 
the City.  Vera Brissman continued by stating the following: 
 
Thank you again for allowing me to speak.  It is easier this time when I know it is only two minutes. 
The people of the CITY of Cedarburg have risen up steadfastly against this particular project 
because it provides far too big of a footprint on a small parcel of land.  This is not just ANY piece 
of land - but the Heart, Soul, and Center of Cedarburg and the Downtown Historic District.  This 
development may be well suited for other areas of Cedarburg, but not this particular heart and soul 
site.  This small, special parcel of land would not stand to be over-developed; instead - the City and 
its people need to have a creative eye and foresight.  Please do not vote for this project because it is 
the one before you.  I ask you to stand firm to help Cedarburg remain and grow in what Cedarburg 
does best -- MELD A UNIQUE LIVING CULTURE OF THE OLD WITH THE NEW.  Consider 
the new building on the northwest corner of Washington Avenue and Western Road, where the old 
Tri-Par once stood. It now houses the Clementine Salon. It is new - it fits in scale - its design and 

10 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-8 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
use of materials is fantastic - IT ULTIMATELY IS HARMONIOUS WITH ALL OF 
CEDARBURG. 
The building invites people, it inspires people, and it has fully incorporated the past, present, and 
future of Cedarburg.  In contrast, the HSI development is new -- but overbearing. Its design is 
common to all suburbs. Its use of materials again is similar to that of the large office buildings of 
Mequon. It does not and cannot hope to enhance the Cedarburg Historic Downtown District.  The 
St. Francis Borgia site deserves to have the best -- the best overall quality, within the best overall 
standards - which will only add to, and enhance the Historic Downtown and be truly harmonious 
with all of Cedarburg.  We, as residents, business owners, and The Friends of Historic Cedarburg, 
will stand with you to help develop Cedarburg with a fine-tuned eye, an open mind, and a creative 
spirit.  Thank you again for your patience and consideration. 
 
Phil Bail, N47 W8050 Parkland Road, stated that he is in his third home since 1993 and Arrabelle 
may be his next move.  He compared this issue to the story of Chicken Little, stating that the sky 
will not fall if this rezoning is approved.  He expressed concern for what he heard from the 
President of Lake Shore Development who spoke at the last Plan Commission meeting.  He had a 
proposal for the Lumberyard property and was rejected.  He stated that he was in favor of the HSI 
proposal and that the word has gotten out about Cedarburg.  Developers will not come into this 
community because it is not a friendly community.  Developers figure that Cedarburg is closed to 
development.  He recommended that the citizens of Cedarburg get behind HSI because the proposal 
will add value to the City and will not harm the downtown district.  Mr. Bail talked about the state 
of the City where one-third of the Cedarburg Settlement is empty and the last two businesses that 
were approved in the City are tax exempt (Cedarburg Visitor Center & Museum and The Student 
Union).  Arrabelle will provide taxes for the City.  When he was in the Air Force for twenty years 
he noticed that cities that were willing to accept change survived.  The cities that refused change 
died and that is what is going to happen here in Cedarburg if the development is rejected.  He 
mentioned the Cedarburg Merchants Association is not going to do their annual events such as the 
Pumpkin Walk and the luminaries during the holidays and he questioned what people will think.  
Festivals are getting out of hand.  Festivals may give a little bump to the downtown businesses but 
they don’t provide day-to-day shopping.  He wants the City to continue growing.  He is concerned 
that people don’t understand how property is bought and sold.  It is important when you make 
comparisons to the cost of the land alone, the cost is very reasonable.  The St. Francis Borgia 
property is 3.83 acres and since the price has been reduced by about one-third since the density has 
been reduced by one-third, the cost of the land is barely $1 million.  The Green Bay Packers bought 
a piece of land of 1.48 acres for $1.5 million.  They got half of the land for the same amount of 
money that St. Frances Borgia will be receiving.   
    
Kevin Barry, W74 N304 Cedar Pointe Avenue, agreed that there is a demand for this type of 
housing in Cedarburg and there is nothing else like it in the City.  It offers unique, hassle free living 
that will keep people in the area that no longer want the burden of owning a home.  Let’s keep 
people here and not drive them away.  This development is not a Walmart and calling the 
development a monolithic beast is rhetoric.  HSI is building homes for people to share in our 
community and introducing new neighbors and making new friends.  Moreover, the local businesses 
and downtown will benefit economically from having more customers within walking distance to 
downtown.  This City will also benefit by collecting tax revenue from this property.  He asked the 
Council to use this opportunity to help residents lower their taxes.  He hopes the Council has the 
foresight to do what is best for the entire community.  He expressed concern for the manner in 
which the Vote No faction has proceeded in opposition to this development and their attempts to 
introducing misleading poster boards, questionable petition tactics, and personal attacks on Council 

11 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-9 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Members have all been noted on the public record.  Primarily the opposition has been inflexible.  In 
the end, these projects are about compromise by the developer, the City, and the neighborhood.  
Any other community would welcome a project of this caliber even before HSI heard concerns at 
the November meeting.  He reviewed the petitions that have been circulated.  The original petition 
addressing HSI’s original design turned over 800 signatures; whereas, the new petition with revised 
drawings has only garnered fewer than 200 signatures.  This suggests that the revised plans are 
acceptable to a greater number of people.  This should be the case because HSI met with the 
neighborhood leadership to understand and address their concerns.  As a result, HSI has been 
flexible and has compromised by listening to the concerns of the citizens and the Common Council 
and has made significant concessions by reducing this project by 30%.  In regard to following past 
leaders, former Mayor Coutts has said that the developers made several changes to meet concerns in 
opposition to this project.  This is common and he feels the developer has made an honest effort to 
put forth a product that is both aesthetically and economically feasible for the City of Cedarburg, 
(according to a letter to the editor in March 2 edition of the News Graphic.)  He echoes this 
endorsement of the project.  Former Mayor Kuerschner voiced his support by stating that he finds it 
very difficult to turn down an attractive development that produces an estimated $80,000 per year in 
City portion tax payments and has the potential of increasing economic activity and make positive 
growth happen in Cedarburg (February 9, 2017).   Voices of leadership are clear. The positives for 
this development simply outweigh the negatives.  St. Francis Borgia School educates over 325 
students, many of those families pay taxes to the City of Cedarburg but do not partake in the great 
educational benefits offered by the School District and paid for by those taxes.  St. Francis Borgia 
parents pay extra to send their children to school and they do so because they value a Catholic 
education.  This is a right and a choice but it is not indicative of being concerned about the money.  
Tax payments enrich the community as a whole.  Please vote yes on this project.     
 
Richard Wilde, W65 N527 St. John Avenue, stated that he is opposed to the size and scope of the 
HSI proposal as presented and to the rezoning to higher density they are seeking.  It matters not that 
a possible 1.2% increase in population may or may not make a significant impact on the vibrancy of 
downtown, it matters not that this is the best and only proposal out there, you all know that’s not the 
case, it matters not that this developer seems upstanding, easy to work with and forthright, and it 
matters not that the apartments are upscale with pretty interiors.  Tonight, the Council is charged 
with making a decision on allowing or disallowing a proposal that is too dense for this site and not 
harmonious with the surrounding quiet single family residential neighborhood.  Both the PUD and 
City Zoning Code (page 62) clearly mandate that to justify rezoning to high density they must be in 
harmony with the surrounding neighborhood.  This revised project clearly is not in harmony with 
the surrounding neighborhood and therefore must be denied.  Furthermore, a proposal that 
incorporates setbacks that are 50% less than the City Code, building heights that exceed the City 
Code by 26% and dedicated parking for the church that is reduced by 50% that required by City 
Code is clearly too dense for this site.  You must vote no.  As stated in the September 6, 2016 Plan 
Commission meeting minutes with reference to the Lakeside Development proposal for the old 
lumberyard site, he quoted, “Mayor Kinzel advised that the economics of the proposal was good for 
the City but an infill lot needs to fit better with the area.  He still was uncomfortable with a three-
story building.  And Commissioner Cain agreed that the size of the building and the degree of 
nonconformity were problematic.”  That proposal was denied, how is this any different?  Finally, as 
elected officials of the City, I implore you to do the right thing and vote against the rezoning to 
higher density now and in the future.   
 
John Schauble, W56 N805 Meadow Lane, stated that because the topic of conflict of interest arose 
at an earlier meeting he disclosed that he is a trustee at St. Francis Borgia Parish.  Rather than a 

12 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-10 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
conflict of interest, he thought there is a confluence of interest.  This is an opportunity for St. 
Francis Borgia to dispose of unneeded property and for Cedarburg to achieve an important 
objective.  Over the past year two different neighbors decided it was time to downsize and they 
moved to Grafton.  Another friend, who lived and was active in Cedarburg his entire life moved to 
Mequon after selling his home.  He questioned whether Cedarburg provided them a choice to stay in 
the community.  Whereas, Grafton has provided options for their residents in a central location 
where they walk together and shop.  His former neighbor said it took four minutes to walk to 
Sendik’s, which is about the same amount of time from the proposed development to Piggly 
Wiggly.  He said it was a shame that these people did not have a choice to remain in Cedarburg.  
Many residents have paid taxes to the City for many years and contributed to the fabric of this 
community.  The trend for older adults to reduce their household size will continue.  Will 
Cedarburg pretend that it is not happening here and turn a blind eye to this need?  Or do they have a 
need to serve all the residents? Several of his friends and acquaintances have said that they would 
seriously consider staying in Cedarburg if such an apartment complex was available.  To some 
people it is a possibility that means increased congestion and other undesirable things, to him it 
means new vitality in the heart of Cedarburg.  Looking forward, who should the City be focusing 
their attention on?  It seems pretty clear; people like his former neighbors should be given the nod.  
He hopes the Council agrees.    
 
Karen Johnson, N68 W5671 Bridge Commons Ct., stated that there is so much wrong with this 
particular project in this particular place.  Particularly if talking about downsizing.  She stated that 
she is moving to Grafton because there is not the right kind housing in Cedarburg.  The proposed 
project is not the right kind of housing.  Upon reflection of the past couple of months, she was 
reminded of the fact that the Common Council was elected to preserve and protect the character of 
Cedarburg.  It is the only commodity that the City has.  It is not Cedarburg’s responsibility to 
change the rules just to pay for St. Francis Borgia’s new school.  The land is overpriced, which 
leads to the need for this density of apartments and still have some dollars left over for the 
developers.  This is the wrong project for historic downtown Cedarburg.   
 
Ellen Kellen, N46 W5881 Spring Street, stated that she attended the Plan Commission meeting last 
Monday and listened to many people say how important this high density apartment complex would 
be and how much it would benefit Cedarburg.  She also listened when people stated their names and 
addresses; whereas, most if not all lived nowhere within the vicinity of this project.  Their lives 
would not be changed by it.  She guessed it was much easier to support something that will cause 
you no harm or inconvenience.  But those that live in the area, know that this project is not in 
Cedarburg’s best interest and their lives will be changed greatly.  They will be faced on a daily basis 
with traffic jams and parking problems.  Not just twice a day at 8 a.m. and 3 p.m. when the school 
was there.  This area cannot handle the additional traffic.  Even now at certain times of the day, with 
Hamilton Road and Spring Street so close together, it is difficult to turn north on Washington 
Avenue and almost impossible to turn south.  It is dangerous.  There is no room to add extra lanes 
or turn lanes because it is too close to the traffic light on Western Road.  Has everyone forgotten 
about the two ladies that were killed in this area leaving St. Francis Borgia Church a number of 
years ago?  She understands that the Council has a tough job of keeping the community safe and 
contributing to the tax base in the community.  She sincerely hopes that the Council will listen to 
the residents who live in this area who will be forced to live this nightmare, rather than the people 
who have no skin in the game.  Their lives should not change because St. Francis Borgia has a lot to 
sell and is asking an absorbent price for just over three acres.   
 

13 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-11 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Donna McElligott, W59 N380 Hilbert Avenue, thanked the Common Council.  A truer word was 
never spoken when she heard that nothing is like this in Cedarburg.  True, this is exactly the 
problem.  Her house is an example of the area homes; it is 20 feet wide and 30 feet tall.  Unit B of 
the proposed development is 44 feet tall and 193 feet wide.  They have a quiet neighborhood, with a 
problematic accident prone intersection.  They are being told to accept a large scale project that is 
inappropriate for this area.  It is not a good fit.  They need a project that fits this area.  Plan 
Commission Member Dan von Bargen voted no after walking the neighborhood several times.  He 
noted that his neighborhood would not allow such a dense large scale project and he said that this is 
not what the neighborhood signed on for.  Three apartment buildings being plopped in the middle of 
a residential site is not what any City resident is barking for.  There are smart growth areas scattered 
throughout the City, including another one on Hamilton Road at the Amcast site.  Plan Commission 
Member Greg Zimmerschied voted no after expressing concerns about the density of 69 apartments 
contained in three buildings and he asked why HSI is offering a smaller development in another 
historic community.  Mr. DeRosa said that the building could not be adjusted to two stories.  
Council Member Thome told her that it is not economically feasible to have elevators in a two story 
building.  If that is the case, then why does the new library have two stories and an elevator?  She is 
asking for the Council’s no votes and especially Council Member Regenfuss because this project is 
too large for their neighborhood.  Businesses come to Cedarburg because the City is a small scale 
historic City filled with small historic buildings.  People work hard renovating historic buildings 
and have successful businesses along with homeowners who walk to these areas.  Nothing against 
Mequon, Fox Point and Grafton who are willing to jump on the big box apartment band wagon, but 
the preservation of the small town atmosphere is what attracts tens of thousands of visitors here.  
Tonight is about looking at this project and considering the density, let’s continue to attract people 
here.  She agrees totally with Mr. DeRosa; this is not about emotion.  She can’t help but know that 
he mentioned emotionally six times referring to the school property and or Amcast.  There was no 
mention of the break-in at Thorson Elementary school.   
 
Robert McElligott, W59 N380 Hilbert Avenue, stated that he is asking for the Council’s no vote.  
They moved to Hilbert Avenue because of the history, lifestyle, walkability and bikeability, which 
is part of Cedarburg’s successful branding.  The City’s Smart Growth Plan, City ordinances, and 
Codes are what citizens rely upon.  Homeowners should have a reasonable expectation in the City’s 
Smart Growth Plan.  He heard tonight that the developer said that St. Francis Borgia holds a 
dominant position in the overall financing.  He understands that this is the highpoint of the area; 
however, the church footprint is 4,400 sq. ft. and Building C’s footprint is 240% larger than the 
church.  Building B’s footprint is 280% larger than the church and Building A’s footprint is 370% 
larger than the church.  It is hard to see how this is going to be the dominant structure in the area.  
Putting two, three-story buildings on one side essentially raises that side’s density to 26 units per 
acre, a 240% increase over the Smart Growth Plan of 10.8 units per acre.  Even looking at the larger 
PUD number, of 16.1 units per acre the density of the apartments on the south side exceeds the plan 
by 60%.  He stated that he has a civil engineering degree from the University of Wisconsin-
Madison and he understands this math.  There are 18 identified smart growth areas in the City’s 
Smart Growth Plan.  A strong message is being sent to homeowners living near these areas, as well 
as future home buyers, that the City disregards its own Codes and ordinances.  For several 
weekends, he and his wife walked and talked to their city neighbors and he shared some of their 
comments: 

• A man who came from Chicago and lives on Center Street expressed concern about large 
scale growth since his historic home is near an open field. 

• Another woman on Madison Avenue expressed safety concerns because a friend of hers who 
lost a leg at an accident during a festival.  Traffic is an issue and don’t take it lightly.  

14 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-12 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• One gentleman volunteered that he would be interested in living in the City in this very area, 
buying not renting. 

Cedarburg’s Vision Statement requires a preservation of historic small town atmosphere and a PUD 
requires neighborhood compatibility.  That is what residents and visitors have said.  Cedarburg has 
a successful brand and, like Coke which belly flopped when they changed their recipe, Cedarburg 
brand has been built over the years and it can be destroyed in a blink.  Please vote no.  
 
Carol Smith, W62 N387 Hanover Avenue, stated that she agreed with the position of holding the 
City’s ordinances and Codes the way they are rather than being changed.  Once something is 
changed, you cannot go back.  As for traffic, with the school being closed it is still difficult to make 
a right hand turn (almost any time of the day), much less trying to make a left hand turn.  The 
neighbors are not the only ones positioning against this situation.  She read about Fox Point who is 
doing the same thing, trying to get rid of a school with new developers coming in and the 
neighborhood does not want what is being proposed, high density housing. 
 
Jim Myers, N59 W5542 Edgewater Drive, has been a resident of Cedarburg since 1979 and has 
been at his current address for 19 years.  A long time ago before the yard signs were planted, tweets 
were sent, emails, letters to the editor, and snapchats were shared, he spoke at the November 
Council meeting in favor of the HSI proposal for the St. Francis Borgia school property.  When he 
came to the meeting, he was not prepared for such a large gathering and his sense at that time was 
that many of the people opposed to the HSI proposal would only be in favor of single family 
detached homes on that property and that makes no economic sense.  He reviewed the latest 
proposal from HSI, which reduces the number of apartments on the property and he personally 
thinks that it is beautiful.  He remains in favor of the HSI proposal.  Past Mayors have supported the 
HSI plan as have other community leaders.  They agree that replacing a tax exempt property with a 
tax paying high end apartment complex would be good for the City’s finances.  It will also 
eliminate a vacant property on the south entrance to downtown and he agrees that the City does not 
need another Amcast.  He believes the apartments would put more feet on the street, creating more 
business for the community.  He asked the Council to approve the HSI project because it would be 
good for the City as a whole and would show that we are open for business.  
 
Ann Bruene, W65 N523 St. John Avenue, stated that she moved to Cedarburg 10 years ago and 
rented an apartment.  She fell in love with the community and the dynamic of the City and the 
historical value.  She purchased a home on St. John Avenue between Center Street and Western 
Road.  She loves where she lives and she loves her community.  What she does not like is the size 
and dynamic of the proposed project.  She is all for developing this area, but it has to fit within the 
neighborhood dynamic; it has to be cohesive.  She uses Washington Avenue, Spring Street and 
Hamilton Road to get to work five days per week. Monday through Thursday trying to get down 
Hamilton Road is a nightmare because it goes down to one lane of traffic.  Going down Washington 
Avenue on Tuesday morning ends up in one lane of traffic because Michael is doing his route and 
collecting garbage.  She knows her garbage man’s name because she loves her community.  But that 
street is a nightmare to get out of and the developer is asking to put a very high volume 
development into a very small area.  There is a traffic problem and she felt that it is very negligent 
and irresponsible if this is not looked at prior to voting on this project.  To her it seems as though 
they are trying to fit an elephant into a bird cage.  Please vote no. 
 
Rachel Wilde, N44 W6010 Hamilton Road, reiterated what her neighbors have said and to Mr. 
DeRosa’s comments they have never said that they would approve of three stories and they have 
never agreed with apartments.  What other things is he saying that don’t hold the truth.  She bought 

15 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-13 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
her 1880 house on Hamilton Road in June 2015 and at that time she knew that the school would be 
closing and the church was planning to sell the property.  She understood the possibility of what 
could be built there by understanding the Zoning Code and the Land Use Plan.  She did her research 
and knew that the Mission Statement of the Council is to preserve the historic small town 
atmosphere.  She trusted that the City would not allow large uncharacteristic development to be 
built there.  This trust in the City to do what is right, fueled her to not only buy the house but also 
invest $40,000 to maintain its historic charm despite not being an official historic building.  Her 
background is in mechanical engineering and that is why she is talking numbers and what she 
understands.  She said that she would talk about the project in numbers and it will clearly show that 
this project is too dense for the site.  The developer is asking to rezone to 18.2 units per acre and 
according to her math this is not true.  There are two different PUDs, there are two multi-family 
residential buildings and there is an RS-3 single family district.  You have to separate these two as 
she reads it.  This takes it up to 20.7 units per acre density.  When it is further broken down by the 
tax records the density grows to greater than 25 units per acre between the north and south side.  In 
that perspective it is pretty darn big.  Despite the downsized plan, there are seven nonconforming 
items.  The current plan states that there are 8 units per structure; however, the building on the south 
side has 32 units and 28 units.  Her math tells her this is at least four times the standard.  The 
standard for height is 35 feet, which seems reasonable next to her two-story historic home.  The new 
proposal shows the heights of buildings A & B and Building B is directly across from her house at 
43 feet tall which is significantly taller and will overshadow her house to the point where in the 
winter time she will not have any sun in her windows.  She did not buy into this community to have 
no sunlight during the winter time.  She hopes that the architect can prove her wrong, this is her 
math and she does not have the tools that he has.  Regarding the setbacks, Building C does not fit on 
the site and it violates the setbacks from the side yard as well as the street.  The proposed setback is 
half of the standard.  She is not talking about a foot or a couple of inches, it is half the standard.  
Building B (directly across from her house) is similarly too close to the sidewalk.  Once again, 
showing the space needed for the density of this development is not available on this site.  The 
standard for lot areas required for two and three bedroom units is 3300 sq. ft. per unit.  Buildings A 
& B on the south side are planned to have 60 units and this would require 4.55 acres.  According to 
the standards these buildings are nearly double the size allowable.  The parking plan for the church 
has been discussed and there is only 40 surface stalls on paper and then 39 stalls will be shared.  She 
challenged everyone to think about when the church is in use…Christmas Eve, Saturdays for 
weddings, funerals.  On a Saturday or Sunday, is no one going to be visiting the empty nesters and 
not want to use the same parking spots?  Her parents are empty nesters and they go to their house 
for holidays; she expects it will be the same here.  A cartoon that she found shows the width of 
Hamilton Road as it is today and there is no room to make it wider.  The setbacks are not far enough 
for HSI and her house is also close to the road and there is no room to expand.  There is barely 
space for two cars to pass next to each other without taking off the mirrors.  To summarize the gross 
non conformities of this proposal, sixty percent too dense, four times too many units, twenty-two 
percent too tall, two times to close to the neighboring buildings, provides only forty percent of the 
setbacks required, ninety percent too large for the lot area and provides half the parking required for 
the church.  These are not small nonconformities.  The numbers cannot be debated and are clear.  
The size and density of the proposal are too big and will never blend with the primarily historic 
residences that surround it.  How is this development any better than one that actually fits on this 
property?  Let’s not forget that the right proposal will also add a boost to the downtown merchants, 
as the school provides nothing today.  When you approve these amendments you are stating that this 
development is a better utilization of this property than one that fits within the Codes.  Do we have 
the data to make that conclusion?  She asked that the Council do the right thing and vote no for this 
development.  

16 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-14 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Bill Bujanovich, W61 N459 Washington Avenue, stated he hears this project represents the highest 
and best use for this site and this project maximizes investment return on capital.  He feels changing 
the Comprehensive Land Use Plan to accommodate investment needs of a seller and buyer is not 
what the City should focus on in this decision.  The City’s developments should not be shaped by a 
developer in a single sale of a property.  More on the Blue Visioning Committee study and 
recommendation – do the results point to a need for large commercial apartment buildings in the 
historic downtown corridor?  To the contrary, the findings at the time of the study found that 
Cedarburg led Wisconsin and Milwaukee in almost all categories of multi-family housing.  Today, 
according to the American Community Surveys estimate, Cedarburg continues to lead or be close to 
the City of Milwaukee in four of six categories of multi-family housing.  The Blue Ribbon 
Visioning survey studied, and questionnaires returned to City Hall, indicated the need for smaller 
single-family homes and condominiums in the downtown area, not more apartments.  For this 
reason, the Comprehensive Plan and Smart Growth plan on Hamilton Road is designated to be 
high/medium density at five to ten units per acre.  The intention is not the development of 
commercial apartment buildings, which can be as high as 25 to 26 units per acre, but for 
condominium homes and small multi-family developments like what is located on Washington 
Avenue and Hamilton Road.  When the Amcast site is built and fully implemented, that site will be 
adding a considerable amount of density to Hamilton Road which is a secondary arterial to the City.  
The Blue Ribbon Visioning Survey employed countless volunteers who worked diligently for 13 
months beginning with two public forums.  Taking into account more than 800 attendants and 
respondents, it conducted six focus group sessions and sent surveys to all City residents.  The City 
received 1,780 completed surveys, gathering the vision for the City of Cedarburg’s residents.  The 
Comprehensive Plan represents all of Cedarburg.  Vote yes and you say no to Cedarburg.  Keep the 
Comprehensive Plan and density as it is.  He urged the Council to vote no. 
 
Irene Clausen, N13 W6866 Pheasant Court, stated that Arrabelle means peace.  This is not peace.  
The people who built the St. Francis Borgia parish wanted a spiritual home for the community, a 
place of worship and love.  They had no idea that the parish they built with their modest coins 
would be sold to the highest bidder, leaving their neighbors in a bind that they lose equity in their 
buildings and their loss of quality of life.  Millions were donated, and she still donated to the parish.  
It is not moral to take from Paul to pay Peter, it is a sin.  She hopes that the Council will vote no in 
what is best for community.  We cannot be greedy and have to think of our neighbors.  We all love 
our community.  The St. Francis Borgia land is not private property, it belongs to the parish, and it 
belongs to the people.    
 
Aaron Schultz, W59 N370 Hilbert Avenue, stated that HSI was very transparent and forthright in 
dealing with the neighborhood group when they met on January 9.  Very bluntly they told him that 
they felt the neighborhood would not sign on to anything.  To which point he expressed 
disappointment.  He thought the neighborhood group was open and did not express that they were 
anti-renter.  The concerns of this property are very objective, not subjective and are not an 
emotional set of concerns, even though there is an emotional reaction at times.  He referenced a 
packet of material that he distributed to the Common Council.  The front page shows how much the 
set of buildings is out of scale with the surrounding properties.  Building A next to the cape cod, 
shows that he would not want a building like this next to his house, along with the scale of the 
townhomes and Building B.  The St. Francis Borgia proposal is really four projects and four 
proposals and could be presented individually as they are not interconnected in any way.  The 
Spring Street lot is specifically one lot that is included in the proposal to boost the “green space” 
and to lower the density for the overall proposal.  The nine townhome units on little over an acre is 
closer to the visioning in the Comprehensive Plan.  The water feature behind it adds to the open 

17 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-15 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
space calculation of the overall site.  His two largest concerns are the slope of the site and what will 
become of the church when the land is divided for the properties.  Forty parking stalls are not 
sufficient to meet the parking demand for the church of 238 seats, especially in the event the church 
wants to move the church onto another congregation or wants to operate as a separate congregation.  
Those 238 seats are filled at times.  That creates a lot of problems because there are 39 spots, cross 
easement spots, that are not included in any of HSI submissions.  He wonders if there is a process in 
place to get this in writing.  If St. Francis Borgia were to subdivide out the parking and reduce the 
lot, elsewhere in the City in a commercial or industrial district they would ask to offset that parking 
requirement by moving it either to street parking or other lots.  The process that is in the Cedarburg 
Code requires very specifically a set of written requests to be considered, proof of a hardship and a 
need, fundamentally it also requires that space be held in reserve so that parking can be 
demonstrated in the future.  The Code states that you can build 39 spots but you have to maintain 40 
spots as an equivalent green space.  So if the need comes up in the future, you can expand it.  This 
cross easement does not do any of those sorts of things.  This cross easement is a hope and a prayer 
that when the church needs 80 spots that the residents will not be parking there.  There is a 
demonstrated strain on the roadway.  There are too many buildings on too small of a site.  The 
school site is 25 plus units per acre.  The fact is that they are putting too much building on this site, 
it squeezes the parking area that should be reserved for it.  He asked that the Council look at this 
closely.  He also asked Tony DeRosa from HSI to stop misrepresenting their meetings.  They have 
been very plain and forthcoming with the church.  They have offered to bring the community 
together and the neighbors together to offer input, which has gone nowhere.  He visited the 
Delafield site of the Wells Street Station that was developed by HSI.  The front side of the building 
on Main Street is located on a 45 foot wide street with sufficient parking on both sides of the road, a 
bicycle lane, surrounded by commercial properties and on the back side of the development is a 35 
foot wide street with no parking on either side.  It is also neighbor to approximately 140 spots of 
parking and a series of soccer fields.  It is not in a residential neighborhood or part of a historic 
district.  Delafield markets as historic; however, this property matches none of the criteria that are 
being used in Cedarburg in terms of how it fits in the neighborhood.           
 
Al Lorge, N86 W5484 Warwick Square, stated that he was on the Council 25 years ago and they 
were concerned then about housing for seniors who wanted to downsize and nothing was available.  
Now he is one of those seniors and he still does not have options available for seniors to stay in the 
community.  This type of housing isn’t just for seniors.  It would serve young couples very well.  
Another thing to keep in mind is the very few opportunities in this community to grow.  The project 
will also significantly add to the tax base, which is critical to the City, to hold down taxes.  He 
recalled that approximately 30 years ago, the Piggly Wiggly store was proposed, and there were 900 
signatures against the development.  They heard very similar concerns:  traffic, gateway to the 
historic community and will destroy the community.  They heard many negative opinions but the 
Council did the right thing.  Mayor Kuerschner said, in a letter to the editor, that he led the petition 
and now he is thankful that the project went through.  He questioned what the community would do 
without Piggly Wiggly now; it has been a great addition to the community.  Finally, the audience is 
hearing a lot of angst and emotion tonight, from his vantage point this is the heart of Cedarburg.  It 
is all of the people in attendance, people who care so much about their community that they are 
willing to spend 2 to 3 hours at this meeting.  That is the heart and small town atmosphere.  Yes, we 
need to honor the past and protect the historical significant buildings.  But we cannot live in the 
past.  We must move forward with resolve and do what is best for the long term in Cedarburg.  He 
urged the Common Council to approve the project.    
 

18 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-16 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Laura Bruederle, N49 W5693 Portland Road, stated that she lives on the corner of Portland Road 
and Hilbert Avenue.  She has a quarter acre and they just mortgaged their house again at $217,000 
for a house that was built in 1873.  Her daughters are fifth generation in this house.  That means that 
she has been around longer than all of the Council.  She can trace her house back.  This is not okay.  
This dividing is not okay.  We are Christian, Catholic, Lutheran people.  Where is the empathy that 
we have, she did not feel empathy from anyone in this building.  It is disgusting.  People pay a lot to 
teach their children the right thing.  This is not right.  The Council needs to find a way that we can 
work together.  She told the Mayor and Council Members that this is not right and they cannot think 
that this will be an okay thing.  Once you take the school away and dig that first hole in the ground, 
there is no going back.  We need to teach our children empathy on how both sides of the street are 
feeling.  This is not okay.  This needs to have a very deep thought.  They cannot take the first issue 
that is coming up.  We need to really think this over.  We need to think of our kids that are going to 
be living here in the next generation.  What about the kids that will be coming up in the next 
generation.  That is what they need to think about.  Her vote is no.  Yes, they need something there.  
Yes, we need someplace for the seniors and the snowbirds and the young up and coming but we 
need something that will fit both of their hearts together. 
 
Paul Hayes, N63 W5795 Columbia Road, stated that when they moved to their first house in 
Cedarburg, their neighbor was E. Stephen Fischer.  He lived in a modest ranch home in the 
Westlawn subdivision with them.  E. Stephen Fischer is the former Mayor who saved this town 
because he loved its history.  He loves its history also and the stories that come with that.  He read a 
portion of the history of Cedarburg that he wrote about 25 years ago after interviewing Mr. Fischer.  
Cedarburg was a City of 1,700 persons when Frank Fischer moved his family into the house on 
Washington Avenue on Armorists Day 1918 marking the end of WWI.  Celebration prompted 
Frank to unpack his accordion and join the impromptu parade on Washington Avenue outside.  
Speaking in regard to high grade apartments, the eleven members of the Fischer family, including 
two grandparents, all lived in an apartment above the shoemaker shop that was run by Frank on the 
first floor on Washington Avenue. Grandma and Grandpa had one room; the four boys had another, 
the three girls the third.  Oldest of the seven children was E. Stephen Fischer who roamed the old 
German town freely as a boy and fell in love with it.  Many years later, when he was an adult and a 
disappointed artist, he was still living in Cedarburg when Father Leo Zingsheim of the St. Francis 
Borgia Church proposed a massive architectural renovation to the church.  When he heard what 
Father Leo had in mind, he and his brother Tony hit the streets to get signatures so that he could 
meet the deadline only hours away to file as a candidate for Mayor.  Once elected, Fischer refused 
to let the City issue a demolition order for the church.  It was the first major victory to save 
Cedarburg’s distinctive architecture.  More than a quarter century later, everyone is glad that 
Fischer blocked his fellow parishioners.  St. Francis Borgia is a grand building.  When he and his 
wife moved here they thought they would stay for five years and that was 50 years ago this month.  
Cedarburg has a hard to describe hold on people who live here.  He heard a lot about the burden of 
single-family ownership tonight.  He owns a single-family home and they would fight for their 
neighborhood as the people around St. Francis Borgia are fighting to save their neighborhood.  
There are intangible things that cannot be reduced to numbers; however, he wished that this type of 
thing could be worked into the calculations of market driven transactions.  Which he has heard this 
project described as tonight.  When he heard it spoken, he thought he felt E. Stephen Fischer roll 
over in his grave.  Please vote no.    
     
Eric Hofhine, N64 W 5782 Columbia Road, stated that he has been a resident of the City of 
Cedarburg since 1971.  He is a product of the Cedarburg School system and everything good and 
everything unique about Cedarburg.  There have been many learned people, engineers, and people 

19 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-17 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
much more intelligent than he is speaking tonight.  He spoke from his own personal experience.  
His home on Columbia Road was built in 1861 and is the oldest stone house on the street.  It was 
described in the Columbia Road historic district charter that is registered with the State of 
Wisconsin as the oldest and most simple house with an unfortunate addition.  The house is 
previously owned by some very prominent members of St. Francis Borgia, Francis and Mathilda 
Messa.  They owned the house for almost 60 years and raised 13 children.  When they decided to 
leave the house, one of the challenges of leaving was selling the contiguous property that they 
owned behind his house, which is almost three acres.  It took them almost five years to come up 
with a plan that ended up being what is now Bridge Commons, an outstanding infill project in the 
City of Cedarburg that fits within the scope of the City, the scope of the neighborhood and has met 
the needs of people in the community and those who want to come to the community.  For Sale 
signs are not up that often.  The first project that was proposed by the eventual developer, Mr. 
Stroebel, was a larger box type; cookie cutter type building that was a much higher density.  It was 
frustrating for Messa’s not to be able to sell their property because they had to work through the 
project with the City, while also having to work through the needs and desires of their neighbors for 
what was right for the neighborhood.  They got to the point where they realized that what they were 
leaving there in their former property, that they owned and paid taxes on for over 50 years, is a 
legacy that is a once in a lifetime chance for this infill property.  The St. Francis Borgia property is 
an infill property and has heard that the school has exceeded its useful life.  The building he is in 
tonight was part of a school to the Washington building which exceeded its life as a school but is 
now City Hall.  The Lincoln building exceeded its life as a school but has been a valuable asset to 
the community for a long time.  This was a shared gym.  The Hacker building also has been a 
developed property for many years.  His main point is that they could take time to come up with a 
good plan and the right plan, as the right infill plan at that moment in time for Bridge Commons and 
for the future and for the betterment of the City.  What he continues to hear is that there is a rush to 
get something done and nobody else will be interested in the property; and he does not believe that 
at all.  He told the Common Council that there should not be changes made to the Master Plan and 
as a passive member of the Fire Department he has concerns about the width of the street and fire 
trucks getting down Hamilton Road.  He has concerns about density and tearing down the rectory, 
which has been described as an old building.  His house was described as an old simple home with 
an unfortunate addition.  There is value in these old properties and once they are gone, they are 
gone for good.     
 
Edward Foy, W61 N955 Glenwood Drive, thanked the Mayor and Common Council for their long 
hours during the course of this project.  He also thanked them for their leadership and willingness to 
take on issues like this by volunteering their time and energy.  He is appreciative.  He is a St. 
Francis Borgia parishioner and school parent.  His concerns are his and he is not choosing to speak 
for the rest of the parishioners and other school parents.  The sense that he gets from this 
community is that many people like him want the vibrant historic Cedarburg.  They have also 
looked at the property that he has come to know, as the place where they send their children.  While 
they have fond memories of that school community including the teachers, mission and service that 
was conducted there in the community, they have also gotten to know that facility.  He 
professionally spends his day in schools.  There is nothing historic about that facility.  It is old, 
dilapidated, and it needs to be improved.  Across the street is an empty parking lot.  He wants a 
fantastic and vibrant historic Cedarburg but voting no means that the community will be stuck with 
a falling apart building and an empty parking lot, potentially for years and years to come.  Down the 
street is the Amcast building, he questioned how long it has been there.  He worries that a no vote 
sends a clear message to all of Cedarburg that we don’t want anything new.  In order to improve the 
vibrancy of our downtown district, we need more people within walking distance who want to come 

20 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-18 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
and spend their money in our restaurants, stores and shops.  This is a great message to send that says 
it is a good plan from a great community coming together who want to improve the City.  He loves 
St. Francis Borgia, he loves his school community; however, there is nothing there that children will 
look back on and say they are connected to that building.  Please vote yes.     
 
Philia Hayes, N63 W5795 Columbia Road, stated that Arrabelle could be anywhere but Cedarburg 
is not just anywhere.  It is Cedarburg’s well preserved historic district and architecture that has 
drawn admirers from far and wide.  As a former member of both the Common Council and the 
Landmarks Commission she is well aware of this.  Over the years, and more recently serving as a 
volunteer docent in several historic buildings in Cedarburg, she has heard from visitors who come 
from the east coast, west coast, and everywhere in-between.  They are the people that Cedarburg 
must continue to draw to the beautiful community.  They are the ones who patronize the shops on 
Washington Avenue.  Those who live here, she believes would agree with her that although we 
appreciate the history that has been preserved, we don’t really shop in those shops downtown very 
often.  They eat in the restaurants, but it is the tourists that come in that keep those shops busy.  
Tourists come because it is a special place.  Its architecture is special, its history is special, and she 
is always amazed at how people know about Cedarburg who come from Canada and Australia and 
we cannot change the historic district.  She does not believe, as people have said, that Cedarburg is 
somehow failing.  She thanked the Mayor and Council Members, having served as a Council 
Member; she knows how much time, effort and dedication that they give to the community.  Thank 
you and please vote no.  Remember that downtown Cedarburg has two significant book ends, St. 
Francis Borgia at one end and the Settlement at the other end.  Please don’t reduce the footprint of 
the historic district.  Please do not surround St. Francis Borgia with buildings that do not in any way 
contribute to the aesthetics of our historic community.    
 
Jennifer Zastrow, W59 N416 Hilgen Avenue, stated that she purchased her home in Cedarburg in 
July 2015.  As a young professional, she was drawn to Cedarburg for its small town atmosphere, as 
well as its vibrant downtown area.  She chose to buy, not to rent, because she did not want to throw 
away $1,500 per month in rent when she could spend it on a mortgage and build equity.  Aware that 
the vacant St. Francis Borgia school would be sold, she also understood that the City has worked 
hard to preserve its historic charm and trusted that the City would approve only development that 
would appropriately fit the size of the site and compliment the surrounding structures.  On review of 
the proposed plan for the SFB site, Arrabelle is simply too large for this location.  The addition of 
60 units on 2.32 acres translates to a density of 25.77 units per acre.  A density that is significantly 
out of proportion to the recommended 5.2 to 10.8 unit per acre density advised by the Smart Growth 
Plan.  With such an increase in population at this site, the traffic on Washington Avenue and 
Hamilton Road are sure to increase and also residents who travel along these main roads will face 
increased congestion entering and exiting the downtown area.  What does this mean for St. Francis 
Borgia?  The density that Arrabelle will bring to the St. Francis Borgia site has a potential to 
diminish the viability of their lovely restored church.  During weekday mass, there is frequently 50 
– 60 cars parked for mass and the dedicated 40 spaces for the church and HSI’s plan will not be 
sufficient to accommodate parishioners already in regular attendance.  This problem will be 
heightened for special events held at the church.  Parishioners attending Easter mass last year, 
parked on Hilgen Avenue and even Hilbert Avenue because there simply was not enough space in 
the current 83 spot parking lot.  The insufficient parking will worsen if Arrabelle becomes a reality 
and parishioners and guests are no longer able to park close to the church that will need space that 
can still be utilized.  Is it possible that St. Francis Borgia’s historic church, an iconic landmark in 
the heart of downtown Cedarburg, will become obsolete?  Arrabelle is simply too large for the site.  

21 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-19 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
It will negatively impact Cedarburg residents and St. Francis Borgia members alike.  Cedarburg can 
do better and this is why she urged the Council to vote no to the proposed rezoning.  
 
Val Loughran, N40 W6096 Jackson Street, negated some things that were said by Tony DeRosa.  
He is not confused as to what they want; they want less density and that is what they have been 
saying all along.  He said if the property were free it would be difficult to develop; then she 
wonders if he is the person for this project.  He also said that in order to build the project with less 
density he would probably need to cheapen the materials; she wonders if he should rethink a 
different approach or maybe he should not be doing the project.  To the architect, thank you for the 
townhouses as it does show they are listening.  She thanked them also for the access and the front 
porches.  If they did not like the visuals that they provided you, then you should have given them a 
3D model, like they have asked for a number of times.  HSI has a business profit responsibility on 
the table, St. Francis Borgia has a financial responsibility, but in front of them is a civic 
responsibility.  The residents of the City of Cedarburg are getting a lot of pressure to do what a lot 
of the other communities in the area are doing and that is to jump on the band wagon to provide 
high density apartment living.  But she is not here to help HSI or the Catholic church, she sees 
nothing wrong with building this type of complex, however, she has a problem with the location.  
This is not the right place for a large cluster of buildings.  This type of development does not belong 
in or adjoining the historic district.  This is evidenced by the number of zoning ordinances that will 
need to be changed in order to push the development through.  It seems that HSI likes to build these 
complexes in what is considered somewhat high end areas as they boasted they are building in 
Delafield, Wauwatosa and others as though it would make it right for Cedarburg.  Cedarburg is not 
those communities and telling us that everyone else is doing it should not be the reason for us to do 
it too.  Cedarburg needs growth, needs to expand our tax base, have bills to pay, but with our 
current renewed political energy and the predicted growth in small businesses, perhaps we should 
not be so quick to wring our hands.  Perhaps we can keep our City’s small town character and create 
other taxable opportunities and leave this piece of real estate to be developed in a manner more in 
keeping with the neighborhood it has been.  She once watched over the years, as someone started to 
fix up an old Victorian house and at first they did minor improvements and then they added new 
windows, reconfigured the porch, altered the roofline, and then put on new siding.  One day looking 
at it, she saw that it no longer was an old Victorian, but it wasn’t a new home either.  It had 
completely lost its identity.  It had no charm and appealed to no one and now it is just a house and 
the only unique thing about it was that it had once been an old Victorian.  Cedarburg is charming 
because we historically have been very careful how we changed things.  This is not the time to 
throw caution to the wind and just go for it.  We can make Cedarburg great again if we focus on 
what we do well and we do small town better than any City around.    
 
Brian Brewer, W49 N669 Cedar Reserve Circle, thanked the Mayor and Common Council for their 
service to the City, as well as the Plan Commission.  Residents get to voice their opinions 
occasionally but they are here night in and night out making decisions for long term and he 
appreciates that.  In the course of his work, he gets to work with long range capital planning with 
municipal governments and school districts across the state.  What we have going in Cedarburg, he 
would not trade it for the world.  This passion back and forth would be appreciated more if it was 
less personal, but he gets it that we are passionate because we love the place we live.  This includes 
the Town and City in his mind.  The Town and the growth and development there, has helped 
insulate what the City does.  His concern mainly comes from the fact that we as a City only have so 
many sites available to develop.  The City is going to have to get good at redeveloping.  
Specifically, he is asking the Council to support this project but more generally he is asking them to 
continually do what they have been doing.  This has been a transparent process, this has not been 

22 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-20 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
rushed, this has been laid out under the Smart Growth Plan and the Comprehensive Plan overlaid 
with the Planned Unit Development.  These are economic development tools that are used in most 
municipalities across the State.  The City is just fortunate to have this gym full of passionate people 
that love living here and tell others about it.  He takes exception to the fact that this is a lush project 
and that the original plan had nearly 100 units and it wasn’t scaled back or modified.  In fact, some 
of the numbers that have been quoted, have been manipulating the developers willingness to 
compromise on the north side of Hamilton Road, single family lot on Spring Street and the town 
homes so it takes less density there.  That is great and it is responsive, but now those numbers are 
being thrown back at the developer for density on the south side.  In this process, you are never 
going negotiate with every single resident because it will never happen.  There will always be 
someone who will disagree with what the plan is.  As he walked up the stairs at City Hall for the 
Plan Commission meeting, while looking at all of the different aerial pictures where Cedarburg was 
nearly vacant, he wondered if it took this process each time the City infilled?  Did it take this to 
make these types of decisions?  He guessed that there was leadership and vision by the Common 
Council at the time that made out what we see for our future, we need the growth of the next 50 
years, not the last 150 years, and we need to keep this in perspective.  If the City does not continue 
to make Smart Growth decisions, we will be looked over.  He does not want what Grafton is 
building right in the middle of their downtown.  That is not what this is.  This is charming houses, 
town homes; they give a higher end residential opportunity to replace an outdated institutional 
facility.  To him, that is smart vision, smart growth, anchoring the south end of our commercial 
district.  He stated that he did not envy the Council’s choice this evening.  He wanted to support the 
City’s process for making these decisions about each individual redevelopment opportunity.  That is 
what the City is going to have to be good at going forward.     
 
Andy Traynor, N66 W4800 Cedar Reserve Circle, voiced his support for this proposal and to ask 
the City to think in a visionary way towards the future, much like Mr. Brewer reiterated so 
eloquently.  When he looks at what he works with and also what he sees working with the next 
generation, Millennials and Generation Z coming down the line, he is learning more about their 
tendencies and what they are hoping to do.  The Urban Land Institute surveys summarized what 
they are looking for in their life.  They are seeing a great blend of optimism but also realism.  
Realism about what they can afford, what is practical for them, and where they want to be in 
diversity and housing options that are available for that group is extremely important.  They wish to 
own homes; however, a lot of them are not ready now and they need a pathway to get there.  As he 
looks towards the future and considers a couple of other important issues right now, Cedarburg is 
not going to be immune from some of the dangers that are happening in society such as crime and 
issues related to prescription drug abuse that is happening everywhere and knows no exception 
based on geography or income.  He imagines that buildings that are not used like this, are suspect to 
being broken into when not monitored.  He asked that the Council consider the economic boost and 
what is important.  While he appreciates the mission of protecting the small town atmosphere, when 
he rode into town seven years ago to establish his sense of community, while buildings were notable 
and neat, he is not staying here for buildings that are maintaining a Victorian structure.  He is 
staying here because of what he learned about the people, and the heart, and how we celebrate our 
history and our culture, which is extremely important.  He encouraged the Council to make those 
best decisions and move forward.  
 
James Grover, N97 W6712 Aspen Street, stated that he wants to voice his opinion.  Forty-five years 
ago he was a teacher in Milwaukee and a teacher from Cedarburg invited him to come out and open 
up his science department where we had a new middle school.  He was interested; however, he was 
trying to save for a house and by moving to Cedarburg he would take more than $1,000 cut in 

23 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-21 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
salary.  He had to wait and he got his opportunity when he finally got a raise in Milwaukee.  In 
regard to opportunities in this City, the opportunities presented themselves when the new middle 
school, high school and elementary schools were built in Cedarburg.  The land where a gas station 
once stood downtown is still vacant.  This was an opportunity to advance the City in a very positive 
way.  The City has reviewed plans that are very commendable and the Common Council has been 
very attentive.  He wants the group to move forward in the advancement of this opportunity for 
Cedarburg to move along past an old building and parking lot and develop it.  There will be people 
moving out here as fast as possible.  
 
Claudette Lee Roseland, N56 W6431 Center Street, stated that traffic congestion was inadvertently 
and accidentally created by selling the old library building to a company with employees with cars.  
She asked as a constructive action item, when they consider the zoning, rezoning, and engineering 
of this project, that they consider eliminating the parking spaces on one side of Hamilton Road.  If 
that had been done on the first block of Center Street, it would have made backing out of her 
driveway a lot less confusing than it is now.   
 
Mike Houlihan, W74 N1087 Montgomery Avenue, stated that he and his wife have raised three 
children.  He is not new to this topic, as twelve plus years ago he led the Strategic Planning 
Committee for St. Francis Borgia.  When they started talking about a new school, from the 
beginning it had been very transparent that they needed to sell this property.  As he looks at what at 
he heard, he heard many outlandish ideas (youth hostels, retrofit for a nursing home, daycare center, 
etc.)  He shared four ideas because he supports the project and because it is the best idea he has 
seen. 

1. Partnership – they continue to be a partner with the community.  2,500 plus families 
supporting the community.  They continue to support the church on the south end for 
$240,000/year.  It will continue to be the shining beacon on the south end of Washington 
Avenue.  He does not believe this development changes the look, feel, or nature of the 
historic downtown.  

2. Amenities – they are needed for the community.  However, what about the time these 
residents will commit to the community such as supporting the performing arts, charities,  
and long term endowments because they are integrated into the community.   

3. Diversity – for years they have walked downtown and there are only a handful of 
communities that are well done for options to newly ordained empty nesters.  The challenge 
in Cedarburg is there is not enough of it.  He appreciates Grafton developing the big box 
corridor near I-43 but he is not going to move there or on First Avenue which is truly big 
box complexes.  They have been here 28 years and love the community.  They have more 
visitors today as empty nesters than they did while raising their children.  Many would love 
to live in this community but their demographic is not going to buy a house. 

4. Trust – the one thing that has been consistent over the years is that our architectural integrity 
in the work that the Plan Commission, architectural reviews, and Council have done has 
been evident for years.  It has taken some businesses months to get a sign up because of the 
integrity of the City.   

He has empathy for what the residents around the development are going through; however, he 
trusts that as the process continues, if it is approved tonight, as they look at architectural review and 
the many discussions that are yet to come, the City should look at the traffic studies and ask the 
parish if they would move their sign.  Look at the hardscape, soft scape and landscaping to ensure 
that the integrity that he has come to recognize in Cedarburg continues.  This will expedite the time 
it takes to immigrate that new community which is now encouraging a different demographic to 
come here and live.  This would be a commendable action.  

24 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-22 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Janet Bolin, W60 N417 Hilgen Avenue, stated that she and her husband have lived next to the St. 
Francis Borgia School for twenty-four years.  They have enjoyed the school being good and 
conscientious neighbors by keeping the adjacent sidewalks clean and shoveled while enjoying an 
adjacent property line with trees and green space.  They built a substantial addition to their home 
about five years ago, when talk was just beginning of the school property selling.  They had no 
qualms about investing money in their home and adding additional living space.  As a side note, 
they were required to setback their new porch about two feet to conform to current building and 
zoning codes in the area.  If you look around the neighborhood, you will see at least four homes on 
the block that have invested in major remodeling projects.  She said with confidence, that the entire 
neighborhood takes pride in their homes history and preservation.  They are a small town 
community neighborhood.  When the community is asking to vote no, they are asking that the 
current zoning laws be upheld and that the high density apartments be denied to develop on this 
small piece of land that the school has vacated.  They are not anti-progress or anti-development of 
this property, they are anti-big box developers from out of town, deciding what is good for our 
downtown merchants or empty nesters.  As an empty nester she plans on staying in her home as 
long as possible.  And when they move they will not spend that much money for rent in the future.  
So they are anti-box developers, who assume their project is worthy of changing height 
requirements, zoning regulations, density requirements, and reducing the required amount of 
parking spaces for the churches special events.  Most of all they are anti-destroying the ambience 
and character of one of Cedarburg’s oldest neighborhoods.        
 
Thomas Kandziora, N74 W5408 Georgetown Drive, stated that he worked in Port Washington for 
12 years, when Simplicity moved out the City fathers attitude at the time was:  well that is okay 
someone else will move in.  Well, no one has moved into there.  He is sure that St. Francis Borgia 
has not been swamped with offers; if they were we would be home drinking hot chocolate tonight.  
If you like looking at Weil Pump, Amcast, and Cedarburg Lumber, you are going to love looking at 
a boarded up empty school.  Right now that is St. Francis Borgia’s problem and he is afraid that a 
no vote is going make it Cedarburg’s problem.   
 
Chris Frommell, W53 N934 Hawthorne Lane, is a St. Francis Borgia parish member.  His daughter 
attended the last graduating class of the old school and his son is attending the new school.  He 
supports the project and he urged the Common Council to vote yes.  He is also an architect and he 
worked with Lakeside Development when the proposal was brought forward for the Cedarburg 
Lumber building on Washington Avenue and Jackson Street ten years ago.  They proposed 16 units 
that were broken into four different buildings; each building was a four plex.  They were 
condominiums at the time and they were designed to fit into the Victorian and Queen Anne styles of 
the urban fabric in that area.  At the time, they did not even make it to the Common Council level as 
they were voted down by the Plan Commission because of concerns for too much density, too much 
traffic, too much, too much.  Sixteen units was too much ten years ago and that building still stands 
there as a sign of what happens when a no vote is not progressive and looking at trying to fit 
something into the fabric and redevelop a smart growth property.  He no longer works with this 
developer but he understands that they have been back asking for a lot more units ten years later 
when construction costs and interest rates are higher.  How many years will go by that the building 
stands as a blighted eyesore in the neighborhood fabric.  There has been a lot of energy over the last 
nine months and certainly a lot of arguments tonight.  What it comes down to is what use do you 
want on this site?  Do you want this to be a residential use?  If you vote no, you will never see a 
residential use on this site because Mr. DeRosa and HSI are proposing an attractive development.  
Is it large, it is big; it is filling in smart growth on this site with the density that is needed to make it 
economically feasible?  They talked about investing $10 million; also the sale price of the land to 

25 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-23 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
the developer is more than $1 million; less than one-tenth of the public development costs.  If the 
church were giving the land away for free, do the math, reduce the units by 10 percent and you 
would still be looking at a 62 unit proposal to develop residential on this site.  It is never going to be 
feasible for single family residential.  The developer is essentially saying that to develop this into a 
residential site, it is going to need to be 60 plus units.  If you say no, he does not think you will see 
any developers come back with residential proposals this year or next year, or in five years, or 10 
years. This is the choice before the Common Council.  Do you want this to be a residential 
development?  If so, vote yes, work with HSI Properties, they seem to be a great partner, very 
transparent, and very accommodating and is a developer any City should like to work with.  He 
would much rather this site be residential over anything else.  Vote yes tonight.   
 
John Pintor, W55 N453 Lenox Place, stated he is 82 years and worked at Meta Mold which is now 
the abandoned Amcast.  That work was so rough, he wore a sign one night, he became smart and 
adept to business, that said “Remember the foundry.”  He brings this up because for economical 
common sense, logical and ethical purposes the Council Members should vote in favor of this 
project.  His wife was a teacher at St. Francis Borgia for many years and was known as Mrs. Pintor 
and taught sixth grade.  The school meant a lot to them.  He is afraid that if things continue as they 
are, it will not be good.  In regard to the opposition, he has heard a lot of talk but no action.  Why 
don’t they put their heads together and resolve this problem and come up with a plan, no one has 
come up with another plan for the property.  On one side of the church there are three residents, on 
the other side there are four residents, which makes seven residents within three or four blocks.  Is 
that justifiable for voting no?  No, it is not.  He is afraid that Hamilton Avenue is going to be 
renamed Eyesore Lane because of the blight that will happen if the school property is not 
developed.  He asked the no voters to please help them pass this resolution and make Cedarburg a 
better place to live.  He suggested an option for this property or for Hamilton Road, he is one of 
those horrible renters who lives on Spring Street which is a slope similar to Hamilton Road, in the 
summer they have carloads of young people who use the newly paved Spring Street for 
skateboarding.  This goes on night and day.  He suggested that maybe Hamilton Road could become 
a raceway for skateboarders and they could use the former school as a hall for their purposes.  
Another option is making a zip line down Hamilton Road.  Seriously, he hoped the Council votes in 
favor of the rezoning, it will do a lot of good for Cedarburg.  It is economical, common sense, 
logical, and a practical purpose for the property.      
 
Jason Piunti, W75 N1011 Montgomery Avenue, thanked the Mayor and Common Council for their 
time and passion to listen to both sides.  His family moved to Cedarburg seven years ago for the 
people and the community, it was not the buildings.  He sees more and more people leaving and 
going to other cities and communities because they do not have the opportunity to stay here.  
Residents having the opportunity to rent and have the opportunity for the high end amenities could 
choose to stay here.  This is a loss to Cedarburg and community and the people.  Vote yes for this so 
you can keep the great people in the City of Cedarburg, to continue to grow and keep the same 
value system, the same structure that is here and available for their children and the next generation.  
Please vote yes. 
 
Linda Smith, N32 W7367 Lincoln Boulevard, has lived in Cedarburg since 1970 and has seen a lot 
of changes happen.  When she first moved to Cedarburg the Mill was about ready to be torn down, 
but Jim Pape stepped forward and had the vision to see something greater.  Many people in 
community have given their heart and soul over the years to try to preserve what special place this 
is and make it even better.  The Hayes’ have donated hundreds of hours to this community to help 
make it what it is.  Linda Smith worked on the Visioning Committee, Master Plan Committee, 

26 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-24 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Cedarburg Festivals Board, and the Board of Appeals.  When she served on the Board of Appeals, 
they had to turn down citizen’s requests to make a small addition to their home or to add that second 
stall to their garage because they did not comply with the current City Codes or they did not have 
enough green space or it would present a hardship to their neighbors.  Now the Council is willing to 
throw out all of the ordinances and codes for this project which violates seven of the current Code 
and ordinances.  What makes this project special and worth destroying the current Zoning Code?  
By the way, many people served on the committees to develop these Codes and ordinances and 
plans for the City.  Now they will be cast aside because somebody is willing to pay a little bit more 
than maybe some of the local developers would.  She does not think this is planning for the future 
by selling out to the highest bidder.  Sure, St. Francis Borgia wants to sell their property, but she 
spoke with an architect last week that said he submitted a proposal for the property and it was not 
for a $1 million, now she is hearing the property is available for this amount.  They were told it was 
$1.5 million and there were five other people who submitted proposals to Barry and they were shot 
down.  The architect she spoke to told her that it took three months to even get the basic information 
from Barry about what was allowed in this development.  She knows there are other developers who 
would be jumping at the opportunity to submit a new plan now that the sale is $1 million.  This is a 
big difference for someone who has to do environmental cleanup.  She asked how many would want 
to move into this property for $2,000/month.  She does not think that many Cedarburg residents in 
their golden years are going to spend $2,000/month for rent.  She can stay in her own home, her 
mortgage is paid, her property taxes are $800/month, why would she want to live somewhere where 
she would not own her own property and have to smell someone else’s food cooking down the 
hallway, or listen to someone else’s dog barking all evening, or listen to someone else’s music or 
the party they are having.  Renting is not all it is cracked up to be.  She went through this as a single 
person and she does not care to go back to that again in her golden years.  Keep in mind; this is not 
the only proposal that will come forward.  The architect she spoke to said “We are all just waiting 
because we know that if this falls through there is going to be a lot more of us beating a path to the 
door to bidding on this project.”  She asked how many people would want to have one of these 
buildings built next to their home.  She asked the Council to be fair to the people in this 
neighborhood and vote no.  It is not a good deal and the best proposal for this property, it is too 
dense, it violates too many Codes.      
 
Tony DeRosa spoke in response to the public comments.  He stated that before HSI started thinking 
about developing in Cedarburg, they reached out and did some homework in regards to current City 
leadership and appetite for development in general.  Historically, Cedarburg has not always been 
pro development but after doing their homework they concluded that City leadership was different, 
new and open to looking at new development.  He clarified a few things he heard from the 
opposition tonight.  He did not say that Cedarburg is stagnant – he said Cedarburg cannot be 
stagnant.  The reality of the situation before the Council this evening, is that the property is 
privately owned, this is not owned by the City and the Council is making a decision tonight based 
on the plan that is before them.  He is also not hearing from the opposition any viable alternatives.  
If this was 36 units as recommended by the neighborhood, they would still be here having a debate 
over 36 units.  No one has been able to articulate what that thing will all of sudden happen if 
Arrabelle is built.  No one is talking about the benefits to the downtown businesses.  There is a big 
difference between perception and reality.  At previous meetings he stated that it is not a matter of if 
this property will be developed, but rather when and by who.  After going through this process for 
the past nine months, he cannot say that anymore with confidence.  If Arrabelle does not move 
forward, he is not convinced there is another developer out there after witnessing these past nine 
months would have interest in developing there.  People have taken notice of what is happening and 
there is little confidence in the developer market that if this high quality type of project does not get 

27 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-25 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
support, what will.  Some people mentioned the character of Cedarburg with this school.  What 
happens to the character of the community if the school continues to be broken into and sits vacant 
for 10 years.  No one is talking about that.  Arrabelle will not add to the traffic, the traffic study will 
substantiate that as a condition of their approval.  There will never be a consensus no matter what is 
proposed.  He encouraged the Council to do what is best for the City.  In terms of a cross access 
easement agreement, he has no problem making that a condition of approval as he has agreed to this 
and will put it in writing.  The Council needs to fully understand what happens after tonight.  If you 
vote yes, they will move forward to the next step and they start working on detailed plans and 
design that has not started yet.  If you vote no, the church which has continued to market this 
property for sale will continue to do so and those types of buyers will be brought forward that fit 
within the current zoning by permitted uses.  These do exist.  Those opposed, say vote no, let’s all 
work together as a neighborhood and get exactly what we want; the problem is that is not the 
reality.  If people like it or not, that is not how this process works.  An institutional use could move 
forward without the City or even the neighborhood having any input on what happens here.  Lastly, 
Cedarburg is a great community and that is why he is still around after nine months of this process.  
As said earlier, it is the people of Cedarburg that make it great not just its buildings.  
 
Mayor Kinzel asked for any final comments or questions at this time. 
 
Dan Carr commented that Mr. DeRosa is being irrational about the community.  He has attended 
other meetings and he is very demeaning to this group.  They live and pay taxes here; Mr. DeRosa 
will leave with his money.  The last statement, that they don’t understand, is demeaning.  Do they 
want someone that owns something in the community that does not live here?  That is demeaning.  
Dishonesty is number one. 
  
Vera Brissman stated that it has been brought up many times about the St. Francis Borgia property 
being an eyesore, dilapidated and broken into.  If a citizen happens to be a snowbird, someone 
needs to take care of their property and this is St. Francis Borgia’s responsibility to take care of their 
property.  As far as she knows, they have not abandoned the property.  They need to stop saying the 
property will be dilapidated unless they choose to stop taking care of it anymore. 
  
A citizen said that he would put a chain link fence around the property to prevent intruders.  If the 
neighborhood wants this, they should ask for it. 
 
Irene Clausen suggested that St. Francis Borgia take the debt off the property and ask the people to 
contribute, as they have, and give the property to the City to make a meditation garden. 
 
Donna McElligott said that she never considered herself the opposition. She is their neighbors and 
they are going to be here.  She has nothing but compassion in all sincerity for every single member 
of St. Francis Borgia Church as she is a product of Catholic schools along with her husband.  They 
are coming to the City asking for them to understand that they are all here because they love their 
neighborhood.  For those who have chosen to live in new subdivisions, that is their choice.  They 
have chosen historic homes, smaller scale, and they are asking the people to respect their choice.  
She asked the Council and specifically Council Member Regenfuss to help them maintain this style.  
Please consider them, they are not the enemy. 
 
Mayor Kinzel asked for any further comments three times.  
 

28 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-26 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to close the 
public hearing to consider Resolution No. 2017-04 at 10:45 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote.  
 
City Attorney Herbrand outlined the steps to be taken from this point.  There are three action items 
before the Council tonight.  In the end, the developer needs approval for each item to do what they 
are asking to do.  He stated that a protest petition has been filed and this will require a 75% vote or 
six votes to pass the rezoning; however, the petition only applies to action items 7.B. and 8.A., as 
these are rezoning items under Chapter 62.23 of the State Statutes.  Item 7.A. requires a majority 
vote or a minimum of four votes to pass.   
 
In answer to Mayor Kinzel’s question, City Planner Censky stated that if the Council approves item 
7.A. and denies the second action then the first one really fails because they are tied together.   
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that essentially all three items need to pass to continue the 
development process of the proposed site. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki stated that this format has been terrific.  He also serves on the Plan 
Commission along with the Common Council.  He approximated 22 hours of discussion on this 
topic.  He likes the focus and format allowing two minutes of discussion because it worked well for 
everyone involved.  He thanked the volunteers of the Boards and Commissions that make 
Cedarburg great.  At times what is missed is that everyone involved are volunteers.  Everyone 
chooses to come forward to do what they think is best for the City.  He thanked City staff for all of 
their hard work; he especially expressed gratitude to Planner Jon Censky, Administrative Secretary 
Darla Drumel, Attorney Herbrand for his steady demeanor, City Administrator/Treasurer Christy 
Mertes and City Clerk Connie McHugh.  As a Council Member and Plan Commission Member he 
has come to understand the gravity of his position and others positions in what represented 
democracy means.  He can say that no one sitting on this stage or at this table takes tonight’s vote 
lightly.  In regard to a gentleman’s comment about the rush to sell this site, he has lived in 
Cedarburg since 2002 and he understood that it was the wish of St. Francis Borgia to build a new 
school and things were set in motion five years ago and were understood in Cedarburg.  More than 
two years ago St. Francis Borgia began formally marketing their three acre site.  In 2015, a group 
put in a contract and nothing happened.  HSI came forward in the middle of 2016 approximately 
nine months ago.  Through the efforts of concerned neighbors, the developer has significantly 
reduced the size of the project from 100 units to 69 units on the three acre site.  Through numerous 
meetings with staff, neighbors, and at times the neighbor’s legal counsel, the site layout and 
buildings have been altered all in consideration of the near neighbors.  This project, if approved 
tonight, will continue to go through further refinements at subsequent meetings.  He promised that 
all concerned, staff, elected officials and members of the various commissions and boards will 
continue to watch the progress closely and guide the details of this project into a project the City 
can be proud of including landscaping, lighting, traffic impact and more.  Since day one, he has paid 
attention to the business impact of this development to include the bars and restaurants downtown.  
It is very interesting and telling in regard to this development that no business came forward this 
evening.  (A citizen interjected that is because they do not want to lose business.)  He realized this 
after talking to different business owners and they understand the impact of this development as 
well.  Everyone’s voices have been heard and he suspects that some in attendance do not feel this is 
a correct statement.  It might shock both the opponents and proponents of the project that their 
opinions of the project are the exact opposite of their own.  The Council has heard all the voices and 
there may be a difference of opinion.  Everyone believes there is something special in Cedarburg, 

29 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-27 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
this place is different and unique and those fortunate enough to be born here, good for you, he found 
Cedarburg.  Cedarburg is not defined by its buildings; it is in fact the people.  He thanked AEG and 
HSI for their professionalism and patience in the process as it has been greatly appreciated.  The 
community’s thoughts and concerns are also appreciated.  He thanked everyone for attending.  It is 
because of the efforts of the proponents and the opponents that the City has a fine project tonight to 
consider.  He thanked the Common Council Members; the decision is on their shoulders and they 
are only voting on this project that has been proposed.  They are collectively Cedarburg here tonight 
to vote on this project.  It is truly humbling and he is very honored to represent everyone in the City.       
 
Council Member Arnett thanked Mayor Kinzel, fellow Common Council Members and City staff.  
This has been a difficult issue for everyone and it is a big decision for Cedarburg.  It is something 
that he has taken very seriously along with everyone.  The project has been divisive and we have all 
seen the competing signs and it is the first thing people bring up.  It has been on his mind for many 
months and he is sure the Council feels the same way.  He put many hours of research into this 
project and he is sure that he is not alone.  As an example of the commitment, every Council 
Member was at last week’s Plan Commission meeting listening.  No matter what is decided this 
evening, many people will be disappointed.  If the project is approved, many neighbors near the site 
and other concerned citizens will be very upset.  If the project is rejected, many people who support 
Arrabelle will be angry.  This Council has a terrific combination of wisdom, experience, and fresh 
ideas.  He is confident that whatever decision is made, will be the right one.  He thanked Mayor 
Kinzel for the manner in which he handled these proceedings because it is tough to balance the rigid 
enforcement of the two minute rule with the desire to allow people to speak.  Cedarburg is an 
involved community comprised of all the organizations that make up Cedarburg; PTA groups, 
Rotary, government boards and commissions, Cultural Center, Museum, Education Foundation, 
Fire Department, athletic support groups, etc.  He believes everyone is involved because they care 
deeply about Cedarburg and this passion has been shown tonight.  He thanked everyone for their 
emails, speeches and signs as he has read each one along with speaking with many people.  The 
arguments against this project boil down to a few major themes:  traffic, density, too many units, 
exceeds smart growth; too high, negative impact on the historic nature of the City/gateway, a 
different development would be better suited for this site along with the concept of ownership vs. 
rental.  They have listened and heard all of the concerns. The general arguments for the project 
include:  looks nice, fits in with the image of Cedarburg, replaces a vacant building, supports 
downtown and the historic district, it fills a need because there is very little new product in 
Cedarburg and some financial benefits such as tax base and impact fees.  They have listened and 
heard both sides.  For the record, his vote will have nothing to do with the Church’s mortgage; it is 
irrelevant in his mind.  He pointed out that the Smart Growth Plan does not permit single homes; the 
very minimum is ten units per acre.  He quoted the following from the Smart Growth Plan, “It is not 
intended to be considered rigid and unchangeable but rather is viewed as a flexible guide to help 
City officials and concerned citizens review development proposals….and as conditions change 
from those used as a basis to the preparation of this (now nine year old) document.  The plans 
should be revised as necessary.”  The Smart Growth Plan outlines 16.1 units per acre, an arbitrary 
number that comes from the underlying zoning, and the plan is considering 18.2 units per acre 
tonight.    
 
Council Member Verhaalen stated that St. Francis Borgia’s financial responsibility definitely should 
not be part of the Council’s vote tonight.  He looks at this as a yes or no vote.  Yes, means they 
move forward with the plan and a no vote could mean many things:  the property sits vacant, HSI 
will revisit the proposal again, a different developer will come forward with a development that 
does not need a zoning change such as industrial or institutional.  Or another developer comes 

30 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-28 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
forward that does need a zoning change that St. Francis Borgia approves of.  These are the options, 
and the Council does not have a crystal ball to look forward.  They are not sure the development 
will be exactly as shown in their renderings; they do not know what will happen if nothing is built 
on the site, or even if something else will come forward.  The Council tries to look at past history 
and make the best guess they can.  He emphasized that this is not an easy decision for the Council 
and they understand the impact the development has on the community.  It is an entry to the historic 
district.   
 
Council Member O'Keefe thanked everyone for their emails, phone calls and personal 
conversations.  The passion and the concern of the community are incredible and should be 
congratulated.  He thanked everyone for their input.  He started leaning no for this project because 
he had concerns about the density and the design of the project.  He saw HSI come back with 
several revisions, reducing the development by 30% and different roof levels, double gable design, 
and some front porch entries.  He thinks it looks like Cedarburg.  When you are on the Council, the 
individual needs to throw everything on a scale and his scale is what is best for the City of 
Cedarburg.  With positives on one side and negatives on the other, they need to make the best 
decision they can.  No Council Members are taking this lightly and are passionate themselves and 
careful to do a lot research.  He worries that perception against any kind of development is really 
going to inhibit Cedarburg from developing the areas that are underutilized or contaminated such as 
Amcast that they would really like to clean up.  The only way this can be done, other than spending 
millions and millions of tax dollars is to develop these areas.  He has heard negative comments 
about bringing this property back onto the tax rolls and he does not understand this.  If the Council 
is guilty of trying to maintain the taxes, then yes they are guilty.  In closing, he worries that the 
greatest threat to the City is a certain degree of stagnation.  He thinks the greatest asset, other than 
the people, is the historic downtown.  In contrast to some who think that this will damage the 
downtown, he thinks this is a way of actually keeping the historic district alive and vibrant.  If you 
don’t do anything, nothing will ever be done. 
 
Council Member Thome stated that her thoughts are not going to be coordinated; they will be a 
series of thoughts and comments.  Her first home was on Hilbert Avenue and their youngest 
daughter learned to ride her bike there.  She is not taking this lightly.  Ultimately, they are looking 
for what is best for the City of Cedarburg.  The proposal in front of them is what they are 
responsible for reviewing and voting on.  They have examined, reviewed, agonized, questioned and 
have walked and lived the area; they have listened and talked with many people.  She stated that she 
appreciates the emails, letters, calls from residents from both perspectives.  She saw a lot of faces in 
the audience that she has known for years and others she has gotten to know better over the last 
couple of months.  She clarified some statements that she heard:  she verified with Planner Censky 
that the original plan showed setbacks that were pretty much in compliance. She corrected that the 
Plan Commission asked that the buildings be moved street side to create walkability and a 
friendliness and accessibility within the neighborhood.  Particularly the townhomes that have street 
access will provide this.  She believed that was how the large setback change occurred.  Others have 
shown concern about stormwater retention and seeing retention ponds or activities occur in that 
area, she guaranteed that whatever is built there will be stormwater compliant because those are the 
rules that need to be followed.  It is different than when the Wittenberg subdivision was originally 
developed.  Finally, she expressed how hard this decision is.  Two people who she respects, more 
than imaginable, Al Lorge and Paul Hayes.  These are two people in the community that she has 
looked up to for a long time.  They have opposite views on this development and it is hard for her.  
If the development is approved, there is a long way to go before it is actually finalized.  There are a 
lot decisions to be made going forward and there is a lot of examination.  In defense of HSI, if 

31 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-29 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
indeed this development passes, the City is fortunate to be working with these people because they 
have been credible, honest and polite.  She knows that emotions become involved with all of this.      
 
Council Member Regenfuss stated he thought that everyone could agree on the uniqueness of this 
site and it’s irregular shape, location, presence of the church building and the unique opportunity it 
presents for the City.  He appreciates the passion from the residents on both sides, echoing that they 
have spent a lot of time reading emails and taking phone calls.  At 89 units, he had some 
reservation; however, the revised plans show they have listened.  He thought they need everyone’s 
passion towards design, material and landscaping.  As well as making sure they have a safe and 
reasonable traffic flow. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach thanked those who have yes and no signs, sent emails and letters, as 
they were very helpful in his vote.  He thanks each of them for coming forward and he hopes their 
interest in the proposal does not mean they are single issue constituents.  Regardless of tonight’s 
vote, we need you to follow all issues facing Cedarburg and respond by voting and or running for 
future office.  He favors many of the changes made to the original sketches; however, there are 
many areas that need to be further revised.  He is not an architect; he does not fully understand the 
proposed building footprint, use of construction materials, and the parking arrangements.  Other 
City committees with more appropriate architectural credentials will determine the final look of the 
project based on more complete design documents than are available today.  He thinks the 
townhouse section is compelling and he feels that the developer is valuable.  He also understands 
the passion of the contiguous neighbors who want to get it right for the neighborhood and also the 
need to bolster the City’s tax base.  He visited the HSI Wells Street Station multi-family project in 
Delafield and personally he does not feel the project was harmonious to the adjacent structures.  He 
understood from talking to the planner in Delafield, HSI was very cooperative and professional and 
delivered a design that was pleasing and agreed to by the neighboring businesses, residents and the 
City. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Dieffenbach, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2017-04 amending the City of Cedarburg Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025 for 
the properties located at N44 W6035 and N43 W6005 Hamilton Road and the parking lot across the 
street along with the vacant parcel located between the parking lot and Spring Street from the High 
Medium Density Residential (5.2 to 10.8 units/acre) Use classification as referenced in the text of 
the plan and the High Density Residential (10.9 to 16.1 units/acre) Use classification as shown on 
the map, to the High Density Residential (18.24 units/acre) Use classification and Medium Density 
Residential (12,000 square feet) for the 17,000 square foot area on Spring Street.  Motion carried 
without a negative vote.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-08 TO REZONE PROPERTIES 
LOCATED AT N44 W6035 AND N43 W6005 HAMILTON ROAD AND THE PARKING 
LOT ACROSS THE STREET ALONG WITH THE VACANT PARCEL LOCATED 
BETWEEN THE PARKING LOT AND SPRING STREET FROM I-1 INSTITUTIONAL 
AND PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT TO RM-2 (PUD) AND RS-3 PUD MULTIPLE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor Kinzel declared the public hearing open at 11: 15 p.m. to consider Ordinance No. 2017-08 
and verified with Deputy Clerk Kletzien that this public hearing was properly noticed. 
 

32 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-30 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Planner Censky stated that the intent is to rezone the site from I-1 Institutional and Public Service 
District to RM-2 Multi-family Residential and RS-3 single family for the area fronting on Spring 
Street.  Those are the base zoning districts; the entire project area will be covered by the Planned 
Unit Development District which serves to tie this entire project together as one unified 
development project.  It is this district that provides the flexibility for the Council to consider 
certain adjustments to the Zoning Code. 
 
Mayor Kinzel clarified that the PUD is a tool that is utilized quite a bit for the last fourteen or 
fifteen years.  It is way of trying to mold the project to the best of the City’s needs and allowing 
maybe less density in one place in exchange for more density in a different area, while also looking 
at the big picture.  This is a rezoning item, it is not that the Council is breaking any ordinances; they 
are rezoning the project with a PUD overlay so they can incorporate the various aspects of the 
project.  The zoning is different than it was before and that is why they have gone through this 
process. 
 
Mayor Kinzel asked for any comments three times.  
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to close the 
public hearing to consider Ordinance No. 2017-08 at 11:18 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote.  
 
City Attorney Herbrand clarified that there is a valid protest petition attached to this item and that 
means that a favorable vote of six of the seven Council Members is necessary.  He stated they have 
been provided with a PUD ordinance by the City Planner.  The PUD ordinance sets forth basics for 
consideration that is covered in the Planner’s report.  As noted, Planner Censky has spoken with all 
Department Heads including the Police Chief and Fire Chief when reviewing this proposal and all 
of the comments from them are factored into the report.  At the end of the report are 13 conditions 
of approval and that any motion should be subject to or conditioned upon the 13 conditions set forth 
in the Planner’s report.  
 
In response to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Planner Censky verified that there is a 
parking restriction on the school side of Hamilton Road from 7:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.  This restriction 
is left from when the school was in operation and it will need to be discussed at the Public Works 
Commission. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2017-08 to rezone properties located at N44 W6035 and N42 W6005 Hamilton Road 
and the parking lot across the street along with the vacant parcel located between the parking lot and 
Spring Street from I-1 Institutional and Public Service District to RM-2 (PUD) and RS-3 PUD 
Multiple-Family Residential District, Single-Family Residential District and Planned Unit 
Development Overlay District subject to the following conditions: 

1. Submittal of a traffic impact study prior to approval of the final detail plans. 
2. The exit onto Washington Avenue will need to be posted “No left turn” or designed to 

functionally prohibit left turns. 
3. Submittal of the detailed site, architectural, landscaping, exterior light, etc. after the 

Common Council’s decision on the rezoning request. 
4. A development agreement to be processed along with the review and approval of the final 

detailed plans. 
5. Grading, drainage and storm water management plans will be required. 

33 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-31 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

6. Impact fees due at time of building permit acquisition. 
7. Building must meet all State Fire Codes (sprinkler, alarms, access, etc.) 
8. Submittal of a cross-easement to allow parishioners the right to use the 39 surface stalls 

when needed. 
9. Submittal of a Certified Survey Map of the project area. 
10. Direct all sanitary sewer laterals to Hamilton Road. 
11. Post development runoff shall not exceed redevelopment conditions. 
12. Building must meet all State and local Fire Codes. 
13. All elevators must be able to accommodate the ambulance cot. 

 
Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-09 TO REZONE THE PORTION OF PROPERTIES 
LOCATED AT N44 W6035 AND N43 W6005 HAMILTON ROAD WHERE THE 
RECTORY IS LOCATED TO REMOVE THE HPD, WASHINGTON AVENUE HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION OVERLAY DISTRICT; AND ACTION THEREON  
 
Mayor Kinzel introduced the consideration of Ordinance No. 2017-09. 
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that the last action item resulted in rezoning the parcels and this 
parcel was rezoned to RM-2.  This action item is to remove the property from the Historic 
Preservation District designation.  This will allow for the removal of the rectory building.  Again, 
this will require a super majority vote to pass and the only other contingency he mentioned is that 
the item came from the Plan Commission that no raze permit would be granted until all 
development plans have been approved.  He suggested that any motion to approve Ordinance No. 
2017-09 should be contingent upon the same condition from the Plan Commission. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Planner Censky confirmed that this action is 
specific to this developer through the PUD and if the project is not built, then removal of the rectory 
would need to be considered again with any other development proposal. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Herbrand explained that if the Council 
wishes to turn the decision of razing the rectory over to St. Francis Borgia in the event the project is 
not built then the Council would not include the contingency that came from the Plan Commission. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2017-09 to rezone the portion of properties located at N44 W6035 and N42 W6005 
Hamilton Road where the rectory is located to remove the HPD, Washington Avenue Historic 
Preservation Overlay District under the stipulation that the razing permit shall be withheld until the 
final detailed plans of the 69 unit apartment complex have received approval from the Plan 
Commission and the Common Council. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach to add an amendment to eliminate the stipulation 
that the razing permit shall be withheld until the final detailed plans of the 69 unit apartment 
complex have received approval from the Plan Commission and the Common Council, as the 
church should have control over their property.  Motion died for lack of a second motion. 
 

34 of 189



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170313-32 
March 13, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion carried without a negative vote to adopt Ordinance No. 2017-09 with the contingency. 
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS FOR THE PERIOD 02/24/17 THROUGH 03/06/17, 
TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 02/28/17 THROUGH 03/08/17, AND PAYROLL FOR 
THE PERIOD 02/12/17 THROUGH 02/25/17; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to approve 
payment of bills for the period 02/24/17 through 03/06/17, transfers for the period 02/28/17 through 
03/08/17, and payroll for the period 02/12/17 through 02/25/17.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote.  
  
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT - None 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None  
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS - None 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT - None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adjourn the 
meeting at 11:26 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.       
        
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

35 of 189



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

ORDINANCE 2017-04 

SEC. 7-1-26 KEEPING OF DOMESTICATED CHICKENS  

An Ordinance Creating Section 7-1-26 
Of the City of Cedarburg Code of Ordinances 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide for the health, safety, and well-being of its 
residents, to ensure and maintain property conditions and values, and to provide a 
domestic and sustainable source of nourishing food through limited chicken egg 
production in a residential environment respecting its urban surroundings and rural 
origins; 

THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin do ordain as 
follows: 

That a new section be created in the City of Cedarburg Code of Ordinances as 

follows: 

SEC. 7-1-26 KEEPING OF DOMESTICATED CHICKENS 

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to establish conditions under which 
small-scale keeping of domestic chickens for personal use and enjoyment may 
be permitted on lots zoned for single-family residential use. 
 

(b) Definitions. In this section: 
(1) “Abutting property” means all real property that in any way shares a boundary 

with the real property of the applicant or permittee. 
(2) “Chicken” means a female hen (Gallus domesticus) of any age, including 

chicks. “Chicken” should be interpreted to encompass the singular and the 

plural. 
(3) “Coop” means an enclosed structure in which a chicken roosts or is housed. 
(4) “Rear yard” has the meaning set forth in Section 13-1-240(b)(123), as 

amended, of this Code. 
(5) “Side yard” has the meaning set forth in Section 13-1-240(b)(131), as 

amended, of this Code. 
 

(c) Permit and Compliance With Section Required.  

(1) No owner of real property shall keep or allow to be kept a live chicken within 
the City without a valid permit issued under this section. 

36 of 189



(2) No occupant of real property shall keep or allow to be kept a live chicken 
within the City unless the occupant holds a valid permit issued under this 
section or the owner of the real property holds a valid permit issued under this 
section. 

(3) No owner or occupant of real property shall keep a live chicken within the City 
contrary to the terms of this section or contrary to the terms of any permit 
issued under this section. 

(3)(4) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted to invalidate deed restrictions 
or other real property restrictions or covenants that may prohibit the keeping 
of chickens within local areas or subdivisions within the City. 

 

(d) Procedure Governing Permits. 

(1) To apply for a permit under this section, the applicant must complete and 
submit the following to the Building Inspector: 

(i) An application form signed by all owners of record. If an owner of 
record is a trust or business entity, the application form shall be 
signed by the trustee, a corporate officer, or member or manager of 
a limited liability entity. If the applicant is a tenant or occupant of the 
premises, the application form must be signed by the applicant and 
be countersigned by all owners of record as evidence of the 
owner’s consent to the tenant or occupant obtaining a permit. 

(ii) The registration number of the applicant’s completed Livestock 
Premises Registration with the Wisconsin Department of 
Agriculture, Trade, and Consumer Protection; 

(iii) A non-refundable application fee as set forth in the annual fee 
schedule; 

(iv) A site plan showing the location of all structures located on the 
applicant’s real property, the location of all structures located on all 

abutting property, the coop design, and the site of the proposed 
coop. 

(2) Each permit shall pertain to a single parcel of real property as set forth in the 
property tax records of the City. 

(3) A permit shall be issued only for a parcel which is zoned for single-family 
residential use. No permit shall be issued for any parcel which contains a 
condominium, duplex, or any type of multi-family residential use. 

(4) Each permit shall allow the keeping of no more than four (4) chickens in strict 
compliance with the conditions set forth in subsection (e). 

(5) A permit shall not be transferable in any way. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

37 of 189



(6) The permit year commences on January 1 and end on December 31 of each 
calendar year. Permits applied for after January 1 of a year will expire on 
December 31 of that year; permit fees shall not be pro-rated. 

(7) If there are no changes to be made to the information submitted in the original 
application, a permittee shall renew the permit annually by paying the renewal 
fee. If the permittee wishes to make changes, the permittee shall submit a 
new full application.  
 

(e) Conditions for Keeping Chickens. The following conditions shall apply to each 
permit issued under this section: 
1. No roosters or other crowing fowl are permitted. 
2. Noise from chickens shall not be so loud as to disturb a person of ordinary 

sensitivity. 
3. No chicken may be kept within a principal residence or a garage. 
4. Chickens shall be kept as pets and for personal use only. No owner shall sell 

or barter eggs or engage in chicken breeding or fertilizer production for 
commercial purposes; 

5. Chickens shall be housed in a coop. A coop shall be no less than three (3) 
cubic feet of space per chicken and must be connected to a secured and fully 
ventilated pen (also required) which contains not less than seven cubic feet of 
space per chicken and an appropriately sized nesting box (also required) at a 
rate of not less than one box per two birds. Pens shall be properly sized as 
will permit full spread of the kept birds wingspan and allow each chicken to 
walk and run.  An existing garage, shed, or small structure may serve as a 
coop if compliant with the remaining terms and conditions of this Section.; 

6. In the event that the coop is properly screened from view from the street, it 
may be allowed in the side yard.  In all other cases, Nno person shall keep a 
chicken in any location on the property other than the rear yard. 

7. All coops, pens, nesting boxes, and any other structure or enclosure 
associated with the keeping of chickens must be located at least 30 feet from 
a neighboring residential structure, not including a detached garage, at least 
five (5) feet from a side or rear property line and at least five (5) feet from the 
residence on the property where the chickens, or other similar domesticated 
foul, are kept. 

8. Coops and pens shall not be located closer than 75 feet from the ordinary 
high water mark of a lake, stream, creek or river. 

9. Upon death of a chicken, the permittee must promptly dispose of the chicken 
in a sanitary manner; 

10. The onsite slaughtering of chickens is prohibited;   
11. Chickens shall be kept and handled in a sanitary manner. 
12. Chickens must be kept in a coop and pen when not being monitored by a 

responsible individual. When allowed to roam free, chickens must be 
monitored and within a fenced enclosure.  Chickens shall be secured in the 
coop during non-daylight hours; 

38 of 189



13. The coop and pen system shall be properly designed, laid-out and maintained 
as will provide safe and healthy living conditions for chickens while minimizing 
adverse impacts on the neighborhood through use of material, colors, 
architecture and special site design that are complimentary to the existing 
buildings on the premise and in the surrounding area.  The City Building 
Inspector shall have final authority for coop design. 

14. All coops must be clean, dry and kept in a neat and sanitary condition at all 
times. 

15. The coop shall be enclosed on all sides and have a roof and doors. Access 
doors must be able to be shut and locked at night. Opening windows and 
vents must be covered with predator and bird-proof wire or fencing of no more 
than one-inch openings. 

16. All enclosures must provide adequate ventilation as well as sun protection, 
and be sanitary, insulated, weatherproofed and impermeable to rodents, wild 
birds and predators, including dogs and cats. These enclosures must also be 
sound and moisture-proof and maintained in good repair with sufficient space 
for freedom of movement and retention of body heat with elevated perches for 
natural roosting position. The nesting boxes must be elevated off the ground; 

17. Provisions must be made for the routine removal and lawful disposal of 
chicken waste in order to prevent any adverse effects related to odor or 
unsanitary conditions;  

18. Chickens shall not be turned loose or taken to the local humane society when 
no longer wanted. 

19. In addition to compliance with the requirements of this section, no one shall 
keep a chicken that causes any nuisance, unhealthy condition, creates a 
public health threat, or otherwise interferes with the normal use of property 
and the enjoyment of life by humans or other animals. 

(f) Inspection and Orders.  The City shall have the power, whenever it may deem 
reasonably necessary, to enter a structure or property where a chicken is kept to 
ascertain whether the permittee is in compliance with this Section.  The permittee 
shall be responsible for all costs associated with inspections. In addition to all 
other remedies available to the City, the Building Inspector may issue orders 
requiring compliance with the provisions of this Section. 

(g) Permit Revocation.  In addition to all other remedies available to the City, the 
City shall revoke a permit issued under this section in the event that the Building 
Inspector has issued two or more violations of this Section to a permittee.  Once 
a permit is revoked, it shall not be reissued. 

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and posting. 

Passed and adopted this 27th day of March 2017. 

              
Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

 

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line

spacing:  single

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  3.5", First line: 

0.5", Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 

39 of 189



ATTEST: 

 

      
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
      
Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line

spacing:  single

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

40 of 189



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-07 

SEC. 7-1-25 PENALTIES  

An Ordinance Amending Section 7-1-25(a) 
of the City of Cedarburg Code of Ordinances 

 
WHEREAS, the City created Section 7-1-26 of the Code of Ordinances, allowing for the 
keeping of domestic chickens; and 

WHEREAS, the City now wishes to amend its enforcement ordinance, to include 
Section 7-1-26; 

THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin do ordain as 
follows: 

Section 7-1-25(a) is hereby amended as follows: 

7-1-25(a)  Any person violating Sections 7-1-15, 7-1-16, 7-1-17, 7-1-18, 7-1-19, 7-1-20, 
7-1-21, 7-1-22, 7-1-23, 7-1-24, or 7-1-26  shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than 
Fifty Dollars ($50) and not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200). This Section shall 
also permit the City Attorney to apply to the court of a competent jurisdiction for a 
temporary or permanent injunction restraining any person from violating any aspect of 
this Ordinance. 

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and posting. 

Passed and adopted this 27th day of February 2017. 

 
              
        Kip Kinzel, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
      
Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 
 

 

41 of 189



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2017                                                                    ITEM NO:   9. A. 

 

                           

TITLE:   Consider application from The Shinery LLC, Elizabeth Reissmann, Agent, for a “Class A” liquor 

license for The Shinery, W63 N706 Washington Avenue for the period ending June 30, 2017; and action 

thereon 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The owners of the Shinery LLC have applied for a “Class A” liquor license for The 

Shinery.  The Shinery is business that sells moonshine (for off-premise consumption and limited sampling) and 

moonshine related products. 

 

There is no quota on Class A licenses.   

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $500 per year license fee 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   None 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:     Troy and Elizabeth Reissmann 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Connie McHugh, City Clerk 
 
 
 

 

42 of 189



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2017                                                                            ITEM NO:  9. B.     

 

                           

TITLE:  Consider request for authorization to hire a Police Officer due to a retirement and consider request to 

promote an officer to Detective Sergeant; and action thereon 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  With Detective Sergeant Vahsholtz’s retirement, the Cedarburg Police Department will 

be one officer position below the usual staffing level of 20.  I am requesting permission to hire an officer to 

replace Detective Sergeant Vahsholtz’s vacancy when he retires on May 3,
 
2017 as planned.  I am also 

requesting authorization to fill the opening created by his departure.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Authorize the hiring of one officer to fill the vacancy created by Sgt. 

Vahsholtz following his retirement and promotion of one current officer to fill his position. 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Positive impact as the new officer will take 4 years to reach the top pay level. 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:    Chief Thomas J. Frank 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Chief Frank, 375-7620 
 
 
 

 

43 of 189



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017                                                                     ITEM NO:  9. C. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider bids received for the 2017 Street and Utility Contract; and action thereon (Public Works and 

Sewerage Commission 3/9/17) 

 

    

ISSUE SUMMARY: Staff advertised for and received bids for the 2017 Street and Utility Construction 

Contract. A total of eight bids were received, with the low bid coming from PTS Contractors, Inc. in the 

amount of $1,517,750.00. 

 

PTS Contractors, Inc. has successfully completed several other similar projects for Cedarburg in the past.     

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends award of the 2017 Street and Utility Construction 

Contract to PTS Contractors, Inc. on the basis of their low unit price bid of $1,517,750.00.     

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission recommended award of the 2017 Street and Utility Contract to PTS contractors, Inc. on the basis 

of their low bid of $1,517,750.00.  

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: The bidding was very competitive this year and the $1,517,750.00 bid is well under 

our estimate and within budget. Funding for the project is from the Sanitary Sewer Reconstruction fund, Storm 

Sewer Capital, Street Capital, and Water Capital budgets. 

 

  

 

ATTACHMENTS: Bid tabulation spreadsheet                                  

                                  Breakdown by budget                                  

              

                                   

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                262-375-7610 
 
 
 
 
 

 

44 of 189



45 of 189



46 of 189



47 of 189



48 of 189



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2017                                                                            ITEM NO: 9. D. 
 
TITLE: Consider final plat approval and approval of a Development Agreement for the Sandhill Trails 
Subdivision; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 03/06/17) 
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Council Members may recall having approved the Preliminary Plat for this subdivision 
at your September 12, 2016 meeting by unanimous vote. Since that meeting, the applicant has been working 
to address all the conditions of Preliminary Plat approval and having completed that check list, they are now 
requesting Final Plat approval. This Plat will consist of 43 single-family lots ranging in size from 14,522 square 
feet to 37,214 square feet and will result in the extension of West Oak Street in the Village of Grafton to Keup 
Road via Yorkshire Street. 
 
In addition, the applicant is requesting Development Agreement approval. The Development Agreement is the 
contract between the city and the developer that establishes the developer’s responsibilities regarding the 

provisions of public and private facilities, improvements, and any other agreed-upon terms. This was 
Agreement was drafted by City Engineer Wiza along with City Attorney Mike Herbrand with the input from the 
developer. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff notes that the Plat is consistent with the Smart Growth Comprehensive Plan 2025 and the approved 
Preliminary Plat and therefore staff has no objection subject to: 

 The radius of West Oak Street where it connects to this subdivision must be modified to meet the City 
required 100-foot centerline radius per Chapter 14 of the Municipal Code. 

 The right-of-way line at the north end of Sandpiper Lane to maintain a minimum 10-foot distance from 
the existing watermain. 

 Sidewalk at the north end of Starling Lane should be connected to the Interurban Trail. 
 All impact fees and the fee-in-lieu of parkland dedication will apply at building permit acquisition. 
 The developer shall be required to install public sidewalks and street trees along the Keup Road 

frontage. 
 This subdivision shall include the full complement of improvements as required in the City’s 

Subdivision Ordinance and all infrastructure plans (i.e. sewer, water, storm sewer, road, sidewalk, 
grading, drainage, and erosion control) shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

 Submittal and City Forester approval of a street tree plan showing size, location and species. 
 Label the dashed lines on Lot 9 as wetland limits and wetland setback. 
 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: At their March 6, 2017 meeting, the 
Plan Commission unanimously recommended approval 
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Impact Fees: (See Development Agreement) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Sandhill Trails Subdivision Final Plat. 
 Development Agreement 
 March 6, 2017 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Jim Doering, Town Realty 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 

 49 of 189



50 of 189



51 of 189



52 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 1 

 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

Sandhill Trails Subdivision 

Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

 

 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of the ___ day of 

__________, 2017, by and between the CITY OF CEDARBURG, a Wisconsin municipal 

corporation (the “City”) and HBT of Sandhill Trails LLC (the “Developer”). 

 

RECITATIONS 

 

 0.1 The Developer owns the Property (as hereinafter defined) of which the tax key 

numbers of the Property are provided in Exhibit A; 

 

0.2 The Developer desires to subdivide and develop the Property as the Subdivision 

(as hereinafter defined); 

 

 0.3 City approval of a Final Plat is conditioned upon compliance with the City 

ordinances, pursuant to § 236.13(1) of the Wisconsin Statutes; 

 

 0.4 Sections 14-1-50 and 14-1-51 of the Code of Ordinances of the City (the “Code”) 

require that the Developer enter into this Agreement to establish that the Developer will pay the 

cost of Improvements, engineering services, and fees for the Subdivision; 

 

0.5 The Developer has caused engineering, planning and design services to be 

performed in preparation for construction of certain Improvements for the Subdivision and will 

cause additional such services to be performed as the Subdivision is developed; and 

 

0.6 The Developer intends to contract for installation of certain other Improvements 

for the Subdivision; and 

 

0.7 The City shall cause inspections and approvals of the Improvements during 

installation by Developer based on the City approved civil engineering and landscape plans. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitations, which are 

acknowledged to be true and correct, the mutual covenants, representations and warranties set 

forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:  

 

  

53 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 2 

 

Article 1 

 

Definitions 

 

The following terms, whenever used in this Agreement, shall have the following 

meanings: 

 

 1.01 “Contract Documents” means all documents now or hereafter evidencing 

contracts with the Developer or its contractors, sub-contractors or affiliates for construction and 

installment of the required Improvements in the Final Plat and all addenda and amendments 

thereto. 

 

 1.02 “Improvements” means the improvements as described in § 4.02 below, to be 

installed for the benefit of the Final Plat by the Developer (or by contract with the Developer, 

whether under the Contract Documents as described in § 1.01, or otherwise).  

 

 1.03 “Final Plat” means the Subdivision Plat presented to the Cedarburg Common 

Council on March 27, 2017 and other pertinent authorities for final approval and recording with 

the Ozaukee County Register of Deeds Office. For purposes of this Agreement, this Final Plat is 

comprised of Lots numbered 1 through 43 inclusive and Outlot 1, and also those roadway areas 

adjacent to the above-mentioned Lots. A true and complete copy of the Final Plat is attached 

hereto as Exhibit B and is incorporated herein by reference. 

  

1.04 “Improvement Plans” means the improvement, grading and landscape plans 

prepared by R. A. Smith National with last revision dated March 24, 2017 submitted with the 

Final Plat as approved by the City, along with any approved amendments or supplements.  A true 

and complete copy of the Improvement Plans are attached hereto as Exhibit C and is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

 1.05 “Financial Guarantee” means one or more letters of credit or subdivision bonds 

issued in conformity with the terms and conditions of this Agreement in the amount determined 

by the “Schedule of Values for Financial Guarantees” with respect to the Property. 

 

 1.06 “Lot” means a distinct parcel of Property within the Final Plat that is depicted by 

a Lot Number. 

 

 1.07 “Property” means all the real property as depicted and described on the 

Exhibit “A” Final Plat. 

  

 1.08 “Subdivision” means, at any time, Sandhill Trails Subdivision, a subdivision of 

the City, as depicted on the Final Plat. 

 

 1.09 “Subdivision Regulations” means Title 14, Chapter 1 of the Code. 

 

  

54 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 3 

Article 2 

 

Term 

 

The term of this Agreement shall commence upon due execution hereof by or on behalf 

of all parties. 

 

Article 3 

 

Developer's Representations and Warranties 

 

 The Developer represents and warrants that: 

 

 3.01 Good Title. The Developer owns all of the Property free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances other than mortgages for the purpose of developing the Subdivision, and that it 

has retained sufficient rights in and to the balance of the Property so as to make all provisions of 

this Agreement valid and enforceable against the Developer and all successors in interest. 

 

 3.02 Improvements Contract. The Developer has examined the Contract Documents, is 

familiar with the specifications set forth therein, and has determined that they are adequate and 

sufficient for the Developer's purposes. 

 

 3.03 Subdivision Regulations. The Developer has examined Article F, Required 

Improvements, and Article G, Design Standards, of the Subdivision Regulations and is familiar 

with the requirements set forth therein. 

 

 3.04 Authority. The Developer has received all required approvals to enter into this 

Agreement and the signatures below shall bind the Developer. 

 

 

Article 4 

 

Duties of the Developer 

 

 4.01 Deed Restriction. Developer shall include language in the Declaration of 

Protective Covenants for Sandhill Trails Subdivision (“Declarations”) that the Lot owners of 

Lots 1 through 43 and the Sandhill Trails Homeowners Association (“Sandhill HOA”) have joint 

responsibility with neighboring developments for maintenance of the storm water pond located 

on Outlot 1, CSM 3983. The storm water pond maintenance responsibilities are set forth in a 

Storm Water Management Practice Maintenance Agreement recorded at the Ozaukee County 

Register of Deeds on June 17, 2015 as document number 1019224, as amended by the  First 

Amendment to Storm Water Management Practice Maintenance Agreement recorded in the 

Ozaukee County Register of Deeds office on December 13, 2016, document number 1043458, 

and by the Storm Water Pond Management Agreement recorded in the Ozaukee County Register 

of Deeds office on December 13, 2017, document number 1043459.  Developer shall also 

include in the Declarations that the Lot owners, by way of membership in the Sandhill HOA, are 

also responsible for maintenance of the landscape easement areas located along Keup Road at the 

entry to the Subdivision, in addition to Outlot 1 of the Subdivision and any other common area 

under the management of the Sandhill HOA. 

55 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 4 

 

 4.02 Construction Duties of the Developer. The Developer shall construct and install 

the Improvements as a single phase and pay all costs therefore, pursuant to the applicable 

Contract Documents, Improvement Plans and the respective sections of the Subdivision 

Regulations, as follows: 

 

(a) Lot Grading. Grade all Lots pursuant to the Improvement Plans and § 14-1-73(c) 

of the Subdivision Regulations approved by the City Engineer. Prior to the 

installation of all underground utilities, Developer shall certify to the City that the 

grading has been completed in compliance with the aforementioned Improvement 

Plans and the Subdivision Regulations. In the event that the actual grade is not in 

compliance, Developer shall pay all costs associated with relaying the 

underground electrical services. 

 

(b) Sanitary Sewerage Systems.  Developer agrees to pay for and install all onsite 

sanitary sewerage facilities including all sewer mains and service laterals 

necessary to serve the Subdivision as depicted in the Improvement Plans, 

including technical revisions as may be required by the City Engineer. 

 

(c) Water Supply Facilities. Developer agrees to pay for and install all onsite water 

supply facilities including all water mains, service laterals and appurtenances 

necessary to serve the Subdivision as depicted in the Improvement Plans, and 

including technical revisions as may be required by the City Engineer, pursuant to 

§ 14-1-68. 

 

(d) Storm Water Drainage Facilities. Developer agrees to pay for and install all onsite 

storm water drainage facilities pursuant to § 14-2 necessary to serve the 

Subdivision as depicted in the Improvement Plans, and including technical 

revisions as may be required by the City Engineer. 

 

(e) Private Utilities. Developer shall file preliminary plans and Developer agrees to 

pay for and install underground gas mains and electric, cable television and 

telephone cables, pursuant to § 14-1-59. All private utilities to be completed prior 

to commencement of the binder course of pavement roadwork. 

 

(f) Survey Monuments. Install survey monuments, pursuant to § 14-1-52(c)(4) of the 

Subdivision Regulations. 

 

(g) Record Drawings. Prepare record drawings for the above work, pursuant to § 

14-1-52(e). Provide full sized prints on 4 mil mylar as well as an electronic 

version in Auto Cad. 

 

(h) Curb and Gutter. Developer agrees to pay for and install all curb and gutter as 

shown on the Improvement Plans and pursuant to § 14-1-54. 

 

(i) Sidewalks and Walking Paths. Developer agrees to pay for and install 5 foot wide 

concrete sidewalks on both sides of all streets contained within the Subdivision, 

and along the Subdivision frontage on Keup Road and at the end of Sandpiper 

Lane to connect with the Interurban Trail, as shown on the Improvement Plans 

56 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 5 

and as approved by the City Engineer, pursuant to § 14-1-67.  All sidewalks 

installed for public use shall be located in the respective road right-of-ways. The 

Lot owners adjacent to the sidewalks shall be responsible for the clearing of snow, 

ice or other materials that might limit the public use of the sidewalks. 

 

(j) Intersection and Lane Improvements. Developer agrees to pay for and install a 

fully improved “T” intersection with Keup Road to include concrete curb and 

gutter, street lighting, storm sewer, and sidewalk.  

 

(k)  Street Improvement. Developer agrees to pay for and install street improvements 

as shown on the Improvement Plans and pursuant to § 14-1-53. 

 

(l)  Street Lamps. Developer shall contract with Cedarburg Light & Water to arrange 

for the installation of standard coach light street lamps on a spacing approved by 

the City, pursuant to § 14-1-60. Street lighting along Keup Road shall utilize 

standard 30 foot poles with cantilevered fixtures. 

 

(m) Street Signs. The Developer agrees to pay for and the City agrees to install street 

identification signs pursuant to § 14-1-61 and any traffic control signage as 

required by the City Engineer. 

 

(n) Landscaping Other Than Street Trees. Developer shall pay for and install 

landscape features as shown in the Improvement Plans. 

 

(o)  Street Trees. Developer shall pay for street trees as shown on the Improvements 

Plans and pursuant to § 14-1-62. The City Forester will select the tree species and 

contract out the tree planting as part of the annual street tree program. At the 

discretion of the City Forester, the trees will be planted each year as new homes 

are completed. 

 

(p) Erosion Control. Developer shall pay for, install and maintain erosion control 

using best management practices and pursuant to § 14-1-63, Chapter 14-2, and 

Chapter 15-2. Developer must comply with all applicable DNR permits, the 

City’s Erosion Control Permit, and the Storm Water Management Permit.  

 

4.03  Time for Completion. Each of the items in § 4.02 above shall be completed on the 

dates specified in this Agreement. 

 

4.04 Impact and Connection Fees. Prior to issuance of any building permit and payable 

at the time of building permit application, the following impact and connection fees will be due 

for each Lot: 

 

WWTF Reserve Capacity Fee   $   636.16 per lot 

 

Library Building Fee     $   825.55 per lot 

 

Police Station Fee     $   944.42 per lot 

    

Park Facilities Fee     $1,127.44 per lot 

57 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 6 

      

Water Supply Facilities Fee    $1,856.42 per lot  

   

  Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee   $1,366.16 per lot 

     

  Developer shall disclose to prospective buyers at the time of Lot sale the amount 

of impact fees due.  The fees set forth above are based on the City’s rates for 2017. 

 

All of the above impact and connection fees are subject to an annual adjustment 

pursuant to §3-6-9 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 

4.05     Developer Payments. 

 

(a) Fee in Lieu of Parkland Dedication. Developer shall pay a fee in lieu of Parkland 

Dedication of $836.68 per Lot. The $35,977.24 total for forty-three (43) Lots is 

due at the time of Final Plat approval. 

 

 (b) City Street Trees. The Developer shall pay the City of Cedarburg for furnishing 

and planting 146 street trees at $296.00 each for a total of $43,216.00. The City 

Forestry Department will hold these funds in a segregated street tree account and 

will purchase and plant street trees seasonally as each home is completed. This 

charge is due at the time of Final Plat approval. 

(c) Other Improvement Costs. Developer is responsible to pay for all reasonable 

engineering, administrative, and legal fees  associated with the new Subdivision, 

during the installation of public utilities, including the cost of construction 

inspection, materials testing, preparation of as-built drawings, and other fees 

associated therewith. 

 

(d)  Account Statements. Developer shall review and approve all contractor, engineer 

and attorney draw requests received by the City and pertaining to the 

Improvements. The City shall provide copies of each such request with supporting 

documentation to the Developer. 

 

(e) Recording Fees. Developer shall pay to the Register of Deeds for Ozaukee 

County all recording fees due for the recording of the Final Plat, any separate 

dedication instruments and grants of easements as are directly attributable to the 

development of the Subdivision. 

 

4.06 Homeowners Association. Developer has established the Sandhill HOA, which 

will be responsible for the maintenance of the storm water pond and landscaping as set forth in 

the declarations and in Section 4.01 above. 

 

 4.07 Financial Guarantee. Developer shall provide an irrevocable letter of credit or an 

approved subdivision bond to the City, which shall not expire prior to fourteen (14) months 

following the installation of the binder course of asphalt within the Subdivision, for the estimated 

costs of the installation of the Improvements including erosion control, roadway, utilities, 

sidewalks, street signs, and engineering fees. The Developer may apply for a reduction of the 

Financial Guarantee pursuant to § 14-1-51 of the Subdivision Regulations. The City shall be 

58 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 7 

authorized from time to time to draw against the Financial Guarantee for costs incurred and due 

the City pursuant to this Agreement if the Developer has not made payments or not completed 

required work in a timely manner as determined by the City Engineer. 

 

The amount of the Financial Guarantee shall be based on the Bids/Estimates for the 

Improvements as set forth in the Schedule of Values in § 4.08 of this Agreement. 

 

 4.08 Schedule of Values for Financial Guarantee. Developer shall provide the 

Financial Guarantee which shall be dated no later than thirty (30) days prior to the 

commencement of construction of the Improvements, in the amounts set for in § 4.06 and the 

Schedule of Values attached hereto. The Financial Guarantee shall be sufficient to cover the 

estimated costs to complete the Improvements for the Subdivision based on § 4.02 and the 

Schedule of Values for the Subdivision which include, but are not limited to, a second lift of 

asphalt and street signs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR FINANCIAL GUARANTEE ON NEXT PAGE] 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

59 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 8 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 

Item 

 ESTIMATED 

COST 

Rough Grading (Lots & Street R/W) Including: Clearing and 

grubbing, topsoil stripping, subgrade rough cut/fill, drainage 

swales, utility spoil placement, lot & ditch topsoil replacement 

& rough grade, and construction of storm water pond. 

Erosion Control Including: Silt fence, tracking pad, hay bale 

ditch checks, temporary sediment traps, outlet pipe, and rip-

rap. $443,500 

Sanitary Sewer and Laterals  $453,439 

Water Main and Laterals  $389,678 

Storm sewer and laterals  $343,086 

Fine Grading of Street       $13,079 

Concrete Curb and Gutter  $86,280 

Road Base  $89,895 

Asphalt Pavement Binder Course   $129,060 

Concrete Sidewalk  $170,762 

Fine Grading, Topsoil, Seeding and Mulching $47,500 

Asphalt Pavement Surface Course $66,625 

Street Lighting $12,000 

Landscaping $35,000 

Street Signs $1,200 

Lot Piping (Owner’s Surveyor) $3,500 

Legal Fees (City) $4,000 

Inspection Fees (including but not limited to  City 

Administration fees) $40,000 

  

Sub Total of Construction and Related Costs (Rounded) $2,328,600                     

  

Add 20% additional Contingency Per § 14-1-51 of the Code: $465,720             

  

THE SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR EACH LINE ITEM IS 

BASED ON ESTIMATES. ACTUAL LINE ITEM COSTS 

MAY VARY. THE TOTAL FINANCIAL GUARANTEE IS 

AVAILABLE TO THE CITY FOR COMPLETION OF 

EACH LINE ITEM. THE CITY IS NOT ACTING IN A 

FIDUCIARY CAPACITY AS TO THE FINANCIAL 

GUARANTEE.  

  

  

TOTAL OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEE:       $ 2,794,320 

 

 
 

60 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 9 

 4.09  Completion Schedule.  Developer shall complete the Improvements for the 

Subdivision listed below as follows: 

 

(a) Underground Utilities including water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, natural 

gas, electric, telephone, and cable TV, and appurtenances completed on or before 

November 30, 2018. 
 

(b) Roadway base, concrete curb and gutter, concrete sidewalks, and binder asphalt 

on or before November 30, 2018.  
 

(c) Roadway final course of asphalt to be installed within fourteen (14) months of the 

installation of the binder asphalt course and within the financial guarantee period.  

 

 4.10 Quality of Work. 

 

(a) All work performed under the provisions of this Agreement shall be done in a 

workmanlike manner in accordance with prevailing standards in the construction 

industry and established standards and specifications of the City as directed by the 

City Engineer. 

 

(b) The City shall have the right during the course of construction of Improvements 

required under this Agreement to direct the Developer to issue contract change 

orders to be paid by Developer, and to amend the plans and specifications, but 

only to the extent required to assure that construction will conform to City 

standards and specifications. All contract change orders proposed by Developer 

involving public rights of way or easements shall be approved by the City. 

 

Article 5 

 

Indemnification 

 

5.01  Indemnification Agreement. 

 

(a) In addition to, and not to the exclusion or prejudice of, any other provision of this 

Agreement, the Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its 

officers, agents and employees, and shall defend the same, from and against any 

and all liability, claims, loss, damages, interest, action, suits, judgments, costs, 

expenses, attorneys’ fees and the like, to whomsoever owed and by whomsoever 

and whenever brought or obtained, which may in any manner result from the 

work performed or the responsibilities of the Developer under this Agreement, 

expressly including, though not limited to, negligence and the breach of any duty 

whether imposed by statutes, ordinances, regulations, order, decree or law of any 

other sort or by contract, on the part of the Developer or its officers, employees, 

agents or independent contractors, in carrying out the work and in supervising and 

safeguarding the same in any respect whatever, and including claims arising under 

any federal, state or local law, including Worker's Compensation laws and 

including negligence and the breach of any duty whether imposed by statutes, 

ordinances, regulations, order, decree or law of any other sort or by contract, on 

the part of the Developer or its officers, employees, agents or independent 

61 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 10 

contractors, in carrying out the work and in supervising and safeguarding the 

same in any respect. 

 

(b) If a claim is made against the City related to work performed by the Developer or 

the responsibilities of the Developer under this Agreement, the City agrees that it 

shall, within ten (10) days of its notice thereof, notify the Developer and any 

liability insurance carrier, which has been designated by the Developer. The 

Developer shall thereafter provide full cooperation in defense of the claim. The 

Developer shall, at the option of the City, defend any claim on behalf of the City 

in which case the Developer or its insurer is authorized to act on behalf of the City 

in responding to any claim to the extent of this indemnity. Such authorization 

includes the right to investigate, negotiate, settle and litigate any such claim and 

control of the defense thereof subject to the approval of the City. 

 

5.02 Extent of Damages. In every case, but not as a limitation on the liability of the 

Developer to the City, where judgment is recovered against the City on any such claim as 

provided in this Article 5, if notice has been given to Developer under § 5.01 above, any 

judgment thereon shall be conclusive upon the Developer as to the amount of damages and as to 

its liability therein; provided, however, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 

herein, the City shall reserve and maintain all of its rights and remedies to pursue recovery of all 

legal and equitable remedies. 

 

5.03 Limitations as to Financial Guarantee. It is expressly understood and agreed by 

the City, unless specifically directed and authorized by the Developer, that the Financial 

Guarantee as required of the Developer pursuant to § 4.07 above, is not subject to any draw by 

the City, or any other party or person, to pay for any, or all, claims for personal injury and 

property damage arising from the construction or installation of such Improvements, but that the 

Financial Guarantee is exclusively limited to the payment for the Improvements not provided for 

by the Developer pursuant to the terms hereof, and for no other purposes. 

 

Article 6 

 

Compliance 
 

6.01  Compliance With Law and Regulations. The Developer shall, in the performance 

of this Agreement, comply with, and give all stipulations and representations required by all 

applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations. The Developer shall also 

require such compliance, stipulations and representations with respect to any contract entered 

into by Developer with others pertaining to the work covered by this Agreement. 

 

Article 7 

 

Conditions and Waivers 

 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall have no duty to issue 

building permits for construction of buildings within the Subdivision unless and until all the 

following have occurred:  

 

  

62 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 11 

 

 7.01 Improvements. Construction of the Improvements for the Subdivision are 

completed pursuant to § 4.02, and the Improvements dedicated and accepted by the City, in 

accordance with the schedule specified in Section 4.09. 

 

(a)  The binder course of bituminous paving of the streets, completion of which shall 

be a condition prior to issuance of building permits for Lots subsequent thereto; 

 

(b)  Installation of street identification signs and seeding of the roadway terrace areas 

(land area between the back of the road curb and the sidewalk); and; 

 

(c)  Installation of landscaping other than street trees. 

 

 7.02 Impact Fees. The Developer has paid the fees referenced in 4.05 (a) and (b) and 

the Lot owner has paid to the City all impact and connection fees for the issuance of a building 

permit. 

 

 7.03  Grading Complete. The Developer has completed the work required on the 

Improvement Plans to rough grade, including the re-spread of a minimum of six (6) inches of 

topsoil and grass seed over all disturbed areas, and allowing for the use/future placement of 

basement excavation on any particular Lot where practical, provided also that any such basement 

excavation allowance shall accommodate proper and positive surface water drainage 

substantially in accordance with the Improvement Plans. 

 

Article 8 

 

Additional Terms 

 

 8.01 Time is of Essence. The times of performance of the terms and requirements of 

this Agreement and of the satisfaction and waiver of the conditions hereof are essential to the 

whole of this Agreement. 

 

 8.02 Dedication. Subject to the applicable provisions of the City Ordinances, as 

amended, upon the final approvals of the Common Council and recording of the Final Plat, the 

lands therein dedicated for public use by the Developer may be accepted by the City. 

Additionally, the Developer shall, without charge to the City, upon completion of all of the 

Improvements for the Subdivision pursuant to § 4.02, unconditionally give, grant, convey, and 

fully dedicate the same to the City, and its successors and assigns forever, free and clear of all 

encumbrances whatsoever, including, without limitation, any and all buildings, structures, mains, 

conduits, pipes, lines, machinery, equipment, and appurtenances pertaining to such 

Improvements together with any and all necessary and required easements for access and repairs 

thereto. After such Dedication, the City shall have the right to connect or integrate other 

Improvements or public facilities to the Improvements hereunder as the City decides, without 

payment or award to, or consent required of, the Developer. 

 

8.03 No Waiver: Remedies. No failure on the part of either party to exercise, and no 

delay in exercising any right, power, or remedy under this Agreement or the Contract Documents 

shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right under this 

Agreement or the Contract Documents preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 

63 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 12 

exercise of any other right. The remedies provided herein are cumulative and not exclusive of 

any remedies provided by law.  

 

8.04 Notices. All notices and other communications provided for under this Agreement 

shall be in writing (including telefax communications) and mailed (certified), sent by facsimile, 

or personally delivered:  

 

If to the City, as follows:    With a copy to: 

 

Thomas Wiza       Attorney Michael P. Herbrand 

Director of Engineering and Development  Houseman and Feind, LLC 

Cedarburg City Hall     Attorneys at Law 

W63 N645 Washington Avenue                                1650 9
th

 Avenue 

Cedarburg, WI  53012    Grafton, WI 53024 

Fax: (262) 387-2051     Fax: (262) 377-6080 

 

 

If to Developer, as follows:   With a copy to: 

 

James W. Doering    Attorney Sandi DeLisle 

Director of Development   Zilber Ltd. 

HBT of Sandhill Trails LLC   710 North Plankinton Avenue 

C/O Zilber Ltd.    Milwaukee, WI 53203 

710 North Plankinton Avenue  E-mail: Sandi.DeLisle@Zilber.com 

Milwaukee, WI 53203   Fax: (414) 274-2710 

E-mail: James.Doering@Zilber.com 

Fax: (414) 274-2711 

 

or, as to each party, at such other address as shall be designated by such party in a written notice 

to the other party in accordance herewith. Delivery of all such notices and communications shall 

be deemed complete, (a) if mailed, when deposited in the mail for certified mail, return receipt 

requested, postage prepaid, or (b) if sent by facsimile, when confirmed as being received by the 

party to whom faxed or delivered, or (c) when personally delivered. 

 

8.05  Force Majeure. The obligations of either of the parties hereunder shall be 

suspended to the extent that it is hindered or prevented from complying therewith because of 

labor disturbances, including strikes and lockouts, acts of God, fires, storms, accidents, or any 

cause whatsoever beyond the control of the parties. 

 

 8.06  Amendments. No amendment, modification, termination, or waiver of any 

provision of this Agreement, nor consent to any departure from this Agreement shall in any event 

be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by both parties, and it shall be 

effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 

 

 8.07 Assignment. This Agreement, and the interests hereunder, shall not be assigned 

except with the prior, written consent of the City. 

 

 8.08 Survival. All of the terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement, including 

but not limited to, all indemnification provisions, shall survive the completion of this Agreement. 

64 of 189

mailto:Sandi.DeLisle@Zilber.com
mailto:James.Doering@Zilber.com


Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 13 

 

8.09 Severability of Provisions. Any provision of this Agreement which is prohibited 

or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without 

invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

 

 8.10 Headings. Article and Section headings in this Agreement are included for 

convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement for any other 

purpose. 

 

 8.11 Integration of Terms. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the 

parties.  

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 

their respective authorized officers or agents as of the date first above written.  

 

 

 

      CITY OF CEDARBURG 

 

 

 

      By:        

           Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

 

 

      Countersigned: 

 

        

      Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

          )  ss 

COUNTY OF OZAUKEE) 

 

Personally came before me this   day of _______________ 2017, the above-named   

Kip Kinzel, Mayor, and Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk, to me known to be the persons who 

executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

              

      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

      My Commission:        

 

 

 

  

  

65 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 14 

 HBT of Sandhill Trails LLC 

 By: Towne Realty, Inc., Sole Member 

 

 

      By:          

       William A. Wigchers, Vice President  

     

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

           )  ss 

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE) 

 

Personally came before me this   day of   , 2017, the above-named 

William A. Wigchers, Vice President of Towne Realty, 

Inc.______________________________________, to me known to be the person(s) who 

executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same on behalf of HBT of Sandhill 

Trails LLC, by its authority. 

 

              

      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

      My commission:        

 

 
 

 

Drafted by: 

City of Cedarburg 

 

After recording, please return to: 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

City of Cedarburg 

P.O. Box 49 

Cedarburg, WI 53012-0049 

 

  

66 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 15 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Tax Key Numbers 

 

13-026-02-011.00 

 

13-026-03-041.00  

67 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 16 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Final Plat 

  

68 of 189



Development Agreement for Sandhill Trails:3/22/2017 17 

EXHIBIT C 

 

Improvements Plans, including Landscape Plans, Completed by RA Smith National 
 

69 of 189



70 of 189



71 of 189



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017                                                                         ITEM NO:  9. E. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider Resolution No. 2017-05 authorizing staff to apply for a DNR Runoff Management Grant; 

and action thereon. 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: To comply with the new TMDL storm water regulations, the City is currently updating 

our storm water model to reflect current suspended solids, nitrogen, phosphorus, and coliform removal levels. 

This modelling is being funded through a 50% DNR matching grant which we received in 2015. The work will 

be completed this year. 

 

Once we have quantified the effectiveness of our present storm water management measures, the next step will 

be to identify practical measures to close the gap between where we are with pollutant removal, and where we 

need to be to meet the new TMDL limits. 

 

Since the 2018-2019 biennial grant applications are due April 15
th

, staff is recommending we apply for another 

DNR 50% matching grant to complete this phase of the planning work. The grants are awarded on a 

competitive basis, and there will be ever more communities applying for the funding going forward. 

 

We estimate the study will cost a total of $40,000 to complete, which would result in a City share of $20,000 if 

we are awarded a grant. We would propose to budget $10,000 in 2018 and $10,000 in 2019 to meet this 

obligation. 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Estimated $40,000 total cost for the study of which the City share would be 

$20,000 if we receive the grant. We would have to budget an extra $10,000/year in 2018 and 2019 under the 

NR 216 compliance budget line. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Copy of Resolution No. 2017-05 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

  

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                262-375-7610 
 
 
 

 

72 of 189



 

 
RESOLUTION 2017-05 
CITY OF CEDARBURG 

 
GOVERNMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY RESOLUTION 

FOR RUNOFF MANAGEMENT GRANTS 
 

WHEREAS,   the City of Cedarburg  is interested in acquiring a Grant from the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources for the purpose of implementing measures to control urban stormwater runoff pollution sources (as described 
in the application and pursuant to ss. 281.65 or 281.66, Wis. Stats., and chs. NR 151, 153 and 155); and 

 
    WHEREAS, the City recognizes the importance of reducing urban non-point source stormwater pollution; and 
 

WHEREAS, a cost-sharing grant is required to carry out the project; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City agrees to budget for the 50% matching local share of the cost; 

 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that  the City of Cedarburg Common Council   
 

 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES  Thomas Wiza, Director of Engineering and Public Works  to act on 
  

 
behalf of  the City of Cedarburg   to: 

 
 

Submit and sign an application to the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for any financial aid 
that may be available; 

Sign a grant agreement between the local government (applicant) and the Department of Natural Resources; 
Submit reimbursement claims along with necessary supporting documentation; 
Submit signed documents; and 
Take necessary action to undertake, direct and complete the approved project. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that  the City of Cedarburg shall comply with all state and federal laws, regulations and 
permit requirements pertaining to implementation of this project and to fulfillment of the grant document provisions. 

      
Adopted this 27th day of March, 2017. 

 
              
         Kip Kinzel, Mayor 
 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City of Cedarburg Common Council at a legal 
meeting on 27th day of March, 2017. 
 

 
Authorized Signature: Title:    

 

 
 
 

 

73 of 189



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017                                                                       ITEM NO:  9. F. 

 

  

TITLE: Consider Ordinance No. 2017-10 amending Section 10-1-34 of the Code of Ordinances to eliminate 

the existing loading zone on the west side of Washington Avenue located mid-block between Mill Street and 

Western Avenue; and action thereon. (Public Works/Sewerage Comm. 3/09/17) 

         

 

           

ISSUE SUMMARY: There is an approximate 20 foot loading zone striped off on the west side of Washington 

Avenue across from P.J. Pipers. This loading zone was created for local business deliveries, but apparently is 

now only used occasionally by the County shared ride taxi.              

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff has no objection to Ordinance 2017-10.    

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: Due to the shortage of parking on 

Washington Avenue, the Public Works/Sewerage Commission recommended that the loading zone on the west 

side of Washington Avenue mid-block between Mill Street and Western Avenue be eliminated per the attached 

Ordinance.  

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: One hour of Public Works crew labor to block out the diagonal white striping and 

remove the loading zone signage.    

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unofficial Minutes of  the March 9, 2017 Public Works/Sewerage Commission meeting 

 Copy of proposed ordinance 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Public Works Commission 

 

 

   

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610 

 

 

 
 

 

74 of 189



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION  

 March 9, 2017 PW/SEW20170309-1 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 
A meeting of the Public Works and Sewerage Commission of the City of Cedarburg, 
Wisconsin, was held Thursday, March 9, 2017 at Cedarburg City Hall, W63 N645 
Washington Avenue, second floor, Council Chambers.  The meeting was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. by Mayor Kinzel. 
 
Roll Call: Present - Mayor Kip Kinzel, Jim Slavin, Council Member Mike 

O’Keefe, Bill Oakes, Sandy Beck, Charles Schumacher 
 

 Absent- 
 

Excused -  

Gary Graham 
bsent- A 

Sandra Beck, Charles Schumacher  
 

 Also Present - Director of Engineering and Public Works Tom Wiza, 
Wastewater Superintendent Eric Hackert, Public Works 
Secretary Kim Gordon, Waste Management 
Representative  District Manager John Luby and 
Economic Development Member Joe Kassander 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Secretary Gordon confirmed that proper legal notice of the meeting had been given. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Oakes, seconded by Commissioner Slavin, to approve the 
minutes of February 9, 2017.  Motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Beck and 
Commissioner Schumacher excused and Commissioner Graham absent.  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
No comments or suggestions were offered at this time. 
 
CONSIDER REQUEST FROM WASTE MANAGEMENT TO ADD A FRIDAY REFUSE 
AND RECYCLING COLLECTION ROUTE TO BETTER SERVE THE COMMUNITY 
GIVEN THE AMOUNT OF NEW DEVELOPMENT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza informed the Commissioners this item is being brought back from last 
meeting for further discussion. Waste Management District Manager John Luby advised 
that in the event a holiday cancels one of the weekday pickups, they would have a 
Saturday pickup that week.  Everyone would be delayed one day. 
 
John Luby stated that notification hangers would be placed on recycle bins at least 2 
weeks or more prior to the start date.   
 
 
 

75 of 189



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170309-2 
March 9, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
 Motion made by Commissioner Guse, seconded by Commissioner Oakes, to approve the 
Waste Management Friday pick up of recycling and refuse.  Motion carried unanimously 
with Commissioner Beck and Commissioner Schumacher excused and Commissioner 
Graham absent.  Mayor Kinzel noted that the Common Council should be informed of the 
schedule change, but this item will not need Council approval.   
 
DISCUSS PROPOSAL FROM JOE KASSANDER FOR STRONGER ENFORCEMENT 
AGAINST PROPERTY OWNERS WHO FAIL TO SHOVEL SIDEWALKS WITHIN 24 
HOURS OF A SNOWFALL EVENT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained the Economic Development Board is dissatisfied with the number 
of public sidewalks that remain unshovelled 24 hours after a snow event. Joe Kassander 
has inquired as to why there is not better enforcement of the Ordinance.  He stated that a 
group of people think that unshoveled sidewalks and overhanging brush hinders people 
from walking and shopping in the downtown area.  Director Wiza explained that our crews 
are busy plowing and removing snow for several days after an event and to have someone 
inspect all 100 plus miles of sidewalks, take down all of the addresses, research the 
property ownership, write letters to all offenders, and then follow up with all offenders is 
unrealistic. 
 
Presently enforcement of sidewalk snow and ice issues is handled on a complaint basis, 
and a police officer will attempt to make contact with the resident to get the sidewalk 
shoveled.  
 
Mr. Kassander is proposing that the City turn over enforcement of unshovelled sidewalks 
to a private contractor, which would guarantee walks are cleared per the Ordinance. 
Residents would receive a bill in the mail each time snow removal or salting is required. 
Unpaid bills would be placed on the tax roll. 
 
Commissioner Guse stated that she investigated this with the Police Department and they 
only get about 10-20 calls per winter.  She also stated that Interfaith group shovels about 
37 homes but can’t get to them all done in a 24 hour period.  Director Wiza will talk to Tom 
Frank, Chief of Police, to have his officers patrol this better.   
 
Commissioner Guse also asked if a sign can be put up at the yard waste area during 
winter time that reminds residents to shovel their sidewalks.  Maybe this reminder can be 
attached to the Wastewater flyers to make better public awareness.   
 
Mr. Kassander provided a sample ordinance and several violation notices which are use 
by the City of Glendale.   
 
REVIEW BIDS RECEIVED FOR THE 2017 STREET AND UTILITY CONSTRUCTION; 
AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Bids for the 2017 street and utility construction were received and opened at 10:00 AM 
Tuesday March 7th.  Staff prepared a summary spreadsheet of all bidders and PTS 
Contractors, Inc. presented the lowest bid at $1,517,750.  We have worked with them 
before and Director Wiza stated that he is very happy with the bids.   
 

76 of 189



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170309-3 
March 9, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Guse, seconded by Commissioner Oakes, to recommend 
the Common Council award the 2017 street and utility construction bid to PTS Contractors, 
Inc.  Motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Beck and Commissioner Schumacher 
excused and Commissioner Graham absent.  
 
DISCUSS EXISTING LOADING ZONE ON THE WEST SIDE OF WASHINGTON 
AVENUE LOCATED MID-BLOCK BETWEEN MILL STREET AND WESTERN AVENUE; 
AND ACTION THEREON 

 
Director Wiza explained that the Mayor asked that this item be placed on the agenda as 
parking in the downtown is at a premium. It appears this loading zone located in front of 
W61 N517 & W61 N521 Washington Avenue was originally created to accommodate 
furniture deliveries at the building which is now Real Fitness. 
 
Director Wiza spoke with Gus Wirth who owns the building to see if the loading zone is still 
needed. Mr. Wirth felt it should remain and advised that the Ozaukee County shared ride 
taxi routinely uses the space to pick up and drop off passengers; many of whom frequent 
the PJ Piper Pancake House restaurant.     
 
Commissioner Guse talked with a driver for the Ozaukee County Taxi and they cannot 
drop off people on the opposite side of the street and allow the riders to cross the street.  
She also stated that the loading zone was created back in 1989 for Carson’s Hair Salon.   
 
Motion made by Commissioner Oakes, seconded by Commissioner Slavin, to recommend 
the Common Council eliminate that loading zone in front of W61 N517 & W61 N521 
Washington Avenue.  Motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Beck and 
Commissioner Schumacher excused and Commissioner Graham absent.  
 
UPDATE ON PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 
 
Director Wiza explained that there is still a “punch list” being worked on at the new DPW 
facility.    
 
Director Wiza stated that PTS Contractors wants to start the street and utility project on 
April 3rd.  This will go to the common council on March 27th. 
 
The recommended 4 hour parking on Hanover, in front of LaBudde Group was denied by 
the Common Council.  Linda Pierschalla, Library Director said they would work with the 
Historical Society on the parking issue.  There is a parking agreement in place.   
 
Commissioner Guse asked if the yard waste attendants were thanked for their years of 
service.  Secretary Gordon will ask/remind Superintendent Bublitz to formally thank them. 
 
UPDATE ON SEWERAGE PLANT OPERATIONS AND DISCUSSION OF MONTHLY 
REPORTS 
 
Wastewater Superintendent Hackert discussed the effluent data report from February 
2017. 
 

77 of 189



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170309-4 
March 9, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
In April, 5 small repairs will be done in Maple Manor at a cost of about $12,000.  This will 
be completed before the street construction.   
 
Sludge hauling has become an issue.  There are still five years left on the contract with 
Veolia, but they are claiming that they cannot find anyone willing to accept the sludge and 
they are losing money in the process.  It appears they subcontracted with Badger Trucking 
and are now hauling to a storage tank in Hartford.  These actions by Veolia have everyone 
confused and not sure what is going on. 
 
Wastewater Superintendent Eric Hackert will be looking at the wastewater and sewer 
ordnances.    
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Mike O’Keefe moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:13 p.m. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Slavin.  Motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Beck 
and Commissioner Schumacher excused and Commissioner Graham absent.  
. 
. 
 
           Kim Gordon 
 Building Inspection/Public Works Secretary 
 

78 of 189



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-10 

 

An Ordinance Eliminating the Loading Zone 

on the West Side of Washington Avenue located 

mid-block between Mill Street and Western Avenue 

 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 10-1-34 of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is hereby 

amended as follows: 

 

SEC. 10-1-34 LOADING ZONE PARKING RESTRICTIONS.  

 

(7) At the westerly curb line of Washington Avenue, described as being from a point  

one hundred fifty two (152) feet south of the south curb line of Mill Street, south 

for a distance of eighteen (18) feet, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., 

except Sundays and holidays. 

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 27
th
 day of March 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

 

79 of 189



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017                                                                       ITEM NO:  9. G. 

                         

 

 

TITLE: Consider agreement with Short Elliot Hendrickson Inc. for general engineering services related to the 

possible construction of a communications monopole; and action thereon. 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: SEH has completed the communication monopole feasibility study and the findings were 

positive. As we work through defining the next steps and evaluating procurement options it will be important to 

have the consultant’s technical expertise and input. Because we can’t specifically define the scope nor potential 

time involved, SEH has proposed a general services agreement where they will charge an hourly rate and make 

themselves available as needed. Once we better define how we intend to proceed, it may then be prudent to 

obtain a proposal for monopole design and construction administration services.    

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Retain SEH on an hourly as-needed basis until we better define the project 

approach and timing.  

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Hourly consultant rates as needed.  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: SEH proposal 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza - Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza 262-375-7610 

                                                                Mike Herbrand 262-377-0600 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

80 of 189



81 of 189



82 of 189



83 of 189



84 of 189



85 of 189



86 of 189



87 of 189



88 of 189



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:     March 27, 2017                                                                   ITEM NO:  9. H. 

                           

 

TITLE:   Consider amendment to renew parking lot lease with US Bank; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The US Bank lease for the parking lot south of the Senior Center and Gym expired 

February 28, 2017.  The bank has sent an amendment to renew the lease for five more years. 

 

The City just repaved the lot at the end of 2016 for $54,581. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Approve amendment to extend the lease. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  None, the amount of taxes on the parcels is already included in the budget. 

  
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Original lease and amendment 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, 375-7606 
     

 

 

 

89 of 189



90 of 189



91 of 189



92 of 189



93 of 189



94 of 189



95 of 189



96 of 189



97 of 189



98 of 189



99 of 189



100 of 189



101 of 189



102 of 189



103 of 189



104 of 189



105 of 189



106 of 189



107 of 189



108 of 189



109 of 189



110 of 189



111 of 189



112 of 189



113 of 189



114 of 189



115 of 189



116 of 189



117 of 189



118 of 189



119 of 189



120 of 189



121 of 189



122 of 189



123 of 189



124 of 189



125 of 189



126 of 189



127 of 189



128 of 189



129 of 189



130 of 189



131 of 189



132 of 189



133 of 189



134 of 189



135 of 189



136 of 189



137 of 189



138 of 189



139 of 189



140 of 189



141 of 189



142 of 189



143 of 189



144 of 189



145 of 189



146 of 189



147 of 189



148 of 189



149 of 189



150 of 189



151 of 189



152 of 189



153 of 189



154 of 189



155 of 189



156 of 189



157 of 189



158 of 189



159 of 189



160 of 189



161 of 189



162 of 189



163 of 189



164 of 189



165 of 189



166 of 189



167 of 189



168 of 189



169 of 189



170 of 189



171 of 189



172 of 189



173 of 189



174 of 189



175 of 189



176 of 189



177 of 189



178 of 189



179 of 189



180 of 189



181 of 189



182 of 189



183 of 189



184 of 189



185 of 189



186 of 189



187 of 189



188 of 189



189 of 189


	Agenda CC 03-27-17
	cc 03 13 17 FFF
	Ord 2017-04 Chickens Revised
	Ord 2017-07 Penalties
	Blue Sheet - Shinery Class A License
	Blue Sheet - Officer Vacancy
	Blue Sheet - Street and utility contract 2017
	Street & Utility Bid Tab &  Breakdown
	Blue Sheet - Sandhills Trails Final Plat
	Sandhill Trails Final Plat
	Sandhill Trails Subd Developers Agreement
	PC Min 03-06-17
	Blue Sheet - NPS Grant Res 2017
	Res 2017-05 Runoff Management Grant
	Blue Sheet - Washington Ave loading zone elimination
	PWS Min 03-09-17
	Ord 2017-10 Washington Ave loading zoning elmination
	Blue Sheet - SEH Monopole Services Agreement
	SEH Proposal
	Blue Sheet - US Bank lease amendment 2017
	US Bank Original Lease
	US Bank Lease Amendment
	Bills
	City Administrator's Report
	2016 Financial Report



